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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Spice Money Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Spice Money Limited (“the Company™), which
comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the
statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its
profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
financial statements.

Key audit matter | How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Revenue recognition (as described in Note 45(K) of the financial statements)

Revenue from sale of digital financial | The audit procedures included the following:

services and other services is recognised | ¢« We evaluated the Company's accounting policies
and accrued with reference to the number pertaining to revenue recognition and assessed
of successful transactions and the terms of compliance of the policies in terms of the applicable
agreements for such service. Accordingly, accounting standards.

evenue amounting to Rs. 42,611.94 lakhs
ave been recognised during the year.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

e With the support of the Information Technology (IT)
specialists, we identified and tested controls over
revenue recognition which focused on whether
revenue from sale of digital financial services and
other services was recorded as per the commercials
agreed and number of successful transactions.

e We tested on sample basis, and inspected the
underlying customer contracts, tested revenue
calculations and assessed whether the revenue
recognised agreed to the underlying records.

¢ Performed detailed substantive testing on a sample
of revenue transactions to verify the accuracy and
completeness of revenue recognition.

* Tested the completeness and accuracy of the data
extracted from the systems on a sample basis and
performed recalculations to verify whether revenue
has been recognized in the correct period.

o We have assessed the adequacy of disclosures
included in financial statements in this regard.

Given the complexity of the Company's
revenue recognition policies, especially in
the context of the financial technology
industry, there is an inherent risk with
respect to the accuracy and completeness
of the revenue recorded given the
voluminous nature and the variety of service
transactions which are processed on a real
time basis through automated flows.
Accordingly, accuracy and completeness of
revenue have been considered as a key audit
matter.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the director's report in the Annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company'’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, specified under Section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

> Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3Xi) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

> Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31,
2025, and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024, were jointly audited by us
and M/s Singhi & Co. we have expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements on May 10,
2024.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

L.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books except (i) as mentioned in note 46 of the
financial statements, we were unable to verify the back up of books of accounts maintained in
electronic mode for the period from April 01, 2024 to August 23, 2024, as necessary logs in
respect of such period are not available with the Company for SAP application, (ii) backups of audit
trail generated for Oracle database are not available and (iii) for the matter stated in the paragraph
(i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g);

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended, specified under Section 133 of the Act;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025,
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2025, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3Xb) and paragraph
(i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g);

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2" to this report;

(h) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2025, has been
paid/provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of Section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act;

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements - Refer note 33 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. A) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note 52 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or

entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
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vi.

Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

B) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note 52 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

C) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

The final dividend paid by the Company during the year in respect of the same declared for
the previous year is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to
payment of dividend. Further, as stated in note 49 to the financial statements, the Board of
Directors of the Company have proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the
approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting; and

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which have a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility for all relevant transactions recorded in the software used by the Company
except that audit trail feature was not enabled for direct changes to SAP database when
using certain access rights as referred to in note 46 to the financial statements and for
Oracle audit trail feature for direct changes to database was enabled from April 09, 2024.
Further, we are unable to comment on whether audit trail feature of software operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in such software or whether there
were any instances of the audit trail feature being tampered with as explained in the said
note. Additionally, the audit trail of previous year has been preserved by the Company as per
the statutory requirements for record retention to the extent it was enabled and recorded in
the previous year.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 30 1003E/E300005

o

per Anil Gupta

Partner

Membership No.: 087921
UDIN: 25087921BMMKYG1213
Place: New Delhi

Date: May 22, 2025
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 of “Report on other legal and reqgulatory requirements” of our
report of even date

Re: Spice Money Limited (‘the Company”)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

()] (a) (A)

(B)
(b)

©

(d)

(e)

(i (@

(b)

(i) (a)

(b)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full parhculars including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

All Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management in the
current year in accordance with a planned programme of verifying them annually which is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company
and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iXc) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use
assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2025.

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class
of inventory were noticed on such physical verification.

The Company has been sanctioned working capital limit in excess of Rs. five crores in
aggregate from the banks during the year on the basis of security of fixed deposits held by
the Company with the banks. Based on the records examined by us and sanction letter
issued by the banks, the Company is not required to submit any quarterly
returns/statements. The Company does not have sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from financial institutions during the year on the
basis of security of current assets of the Company.

During the year, the Company has provided a loan to its employee as follows:

(Amount in Rs. lakhs)
Loans
Aggregate amount granted/provided during the year:
- Employee 50.00
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases
- Employee 20.00

During the year, the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans,
stood guarantee and provided security to Limited Liability Partnerships or any other

parties.

During the year, the terms and conditions of the grant of loan to its employee is not
prejudicial to the Company's interest.
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(c)
(d)
(e
)]

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

i) (@
(b)

In respect of loans granted, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest
has been stipulated and the repayment or receipts are regular except in the following case:

Name of the Amount (Rs. Due date Extent of Remarks, if any
Party in lakhs) delay
Saket Agarwal 148.16 August 06, 2024 | 238 days None

The following amounts are overdue for more than ninety days from an ex-employee to whom
loan has been granted in an earlier year, and reasonable steps have been taken by the Company
for recovery of the overdue amount of principal and interest.

Number of | Principal Amount | Interest Total Remarks
Cases Overdue Overdue Overdue (if any)
n 148.16 Nil 148.16 None

There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies or any other
parties which was fallen due during the year, that have been renewed or extended or fresh
loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, or any other
parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iiiXf) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions
of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services of the Company.

Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income-tax, and other statutory dues have generally been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in a few
cases. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit
procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory
dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable. The provisions relating to sales tax, service tax, duty of customers
and value added taxes are not applicable to the Company.

The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-
tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other
statutory dues have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the Nature of the Amount Period to Forum where
statute dues (Rs lakhs) which the the dispute Is
amount pending
relates
Central Goods | Goods and 95.76 | FY 2018-19 | Uttarakhand
and Services Services Tax High Court
Tax Act, 2017
Central Goods | Goods and 43.43 | FY 2019-20 | Joint
and Services Services Tax Commissioner,
Tax Act, 2017 GST state
appellate
authority
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(viii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income
during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(i) (@ The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year. Hence, the
requirement to report on clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on
short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of
its subsidiaries. The Company does not have any associate or joint venture.

) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries. Hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company. The Company does not have any associate or joint venture.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer/
further public offer (including debt instruments). Hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully
or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence,
the requirement to report on clause 3(x)b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) No material fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed
or reported during the year.
(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act,

2013 has been filed by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there were no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(xiii) Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of

Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv)y (@) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.
(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the

period under audit have been considered by us.

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order

is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) @ The provisions of Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.
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©)
(d)

(xvil)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx) (a)
(b)

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The Group does not have more than one CIC as part of the Group, hence, the requirement
to report on clause 3(xviXd) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

One of the joint statutory auditors of the Company have resigned during the year and we
have taken into consideration the issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing
joint statutory auditor.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 44 to the financial statements, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required
to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act (the Act), in
compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of Section 135 of the Act. This matter has
been disclosed in note 28C to the financial statements.

All amounts that are unspent under sub section (5) of Section 135 of Companies Act,
pursuant to any ongoing project, has been transferred to special account subsequently in
compliance of with provisions of sub section (6) of Section 135 of the said Act. This matter
has been disclosed in note 28C to the financial statements.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 30 1003E/E300005

per Anil Gupta
Partner

Membership No.: 087921
UDIN: 25087921BMMKYG1213

Place: New Delhi

Date: May 22, 2025
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regqulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Spice Money
Limited (“the Company") as of March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the
Standards on Auditing, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisation of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Page 10 of 11




S.R. BATLiBOI1 & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 301003E/E300005

per Anil Gupta

Partner

Membership No.: 087921
UDIN: 25087921BMMKYG1213

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 22, 2025
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Spice Maney Limited

Regd. Office: JA-122, 1st Floor, DLF Tower - A, Jasola District Centre, New Delhi, India, 110025

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
(Rs. in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

. As at As at
Particulars Note March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 400.89 279.61
Intangible assets 4 599,83 101.46
Intangible assets under development 4 64.00 637.43
Right of use of assets 5 211.38 15,59
Financial assets
Investments [ 0,276.99 6.276.99
Loans 7 i F
Other financial assets 8 1,095.69 3,546,07
Non current tax assets (net) 1324 13.24
Deferred tax assets (net) 19 487.65 583.02
Other non-current assets 9 13.46 13.35
Total non-current assets 9,163.13 11,466.76
Current assets
Inventories 10 112.89 21017
Financial assets
Trade receivables 11 2,741.39 2,163.76
Cash and cash equivalents 12 18,985.83 11,641.39
Bank balances other than above 13 16,381.23 21,007.38
Loans 7 168,16 148.16
Other financial assets 8 10,271.21 1,295.51
Current tax assets (net) 344.79 946,10
Other current assets 9 4,735.70 2,266.03
Total current assets 53,741.20 39,678.50
Total assets 62.904.33 51,145.26
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 14 4,487.20 4.408.99
Other equity 15 8,271.88 6,276.23
Tatal equity 12,759.08 10,685.22
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Barrowings 16 E 58539
Lease liabilities L 166.53 9.63
Other non-current lahilities 17 125.07 103.89
Provisions 18 749,50 585.85
Total non-current liabilities 1,041.10 1,284.76
Current linbilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 16 10,098.01 4,830.55
Lease liahilities 5 5165 385
Trade payables 19
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises & small enterprises; and 15.10 20.21
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises & small enterprises 1,490.02 1,326.56
Other financial liabilities 20 2,247.34 1,818.00
Other current liabilities 17 35,044.24 30,969.84
Provisions 18 157.79 204.27
Total current liabilities 49,104,185 39,175.28
Total liabilities 50,145.25 40.460.04
Total equity and liabilities 62,904.33 51,145.26
Summary of material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an internal part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batliboi & Co, LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 301003E/E300005

per Anil Gupta

Partner

Membership No.; 087921
Place: Nigws Dethj
Date: May 22, 2025

For and on behalf of ft}oa{rd of Spice Money Limited

Sunil Kumar Kapoor
Director and Chief Financial Officer
- 05322

’%—J

Srikrishna Narasimhan

Director
DIN: 0717,

hi Desal
Company Secretary
Mem. No.:AZE280




Spice Money Limited

Regd. Office: JA-122, 15t Floor, DLF Tower - A, Jasola District Centre, New Delhi, India, 110025
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Rs. In lakhs unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Note March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income
Revenue from operations 21 44,847.55 43,942.56
Other income 22 1,911.57 2.034.95
Total income 46,759.12 45,977.51
Expenses
Purchase of traded goods 1,503.27 481.51
Changes in inventories of traded goods 23 97.28 264.45
Service & commission charges 24 25,448.97 26,264.70
Employee benefits expense 25 10,066.17 9,379.26
Finance costs 26 497.06 486,63
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 27 405.87 547.01
Other expenses 23 6,067.62 545128
Total expenses 44,686.24 42,874.84
Profit before exceptional items and tax 2,072.89 3,102.67
Exceptional items 47 - 822,00
Prafit before tax 2,072.89 2,280.67
Tax expenses 29
Current tax
-Curren! year 486.84 525.52
-Adjustment of tax related to earlier years 13.24 14.76
Deferred tax
-Current year 106.32 11431
-Adjustment of tax related to carlier years (15.90) 36.99
Change in deferred tax due to change in rate - 282.90
Income tax expense 590,50 974.48
Profit for the year 1,482.39 1,306.19
Other comprehensive income
Re-measurcment gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 10,08 69,47
Income tax effect (2.54) (17.46)
Tatal other comprehensive income, net of tax 7.54 51.98
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax 1,489.93 1,358.17
Earnings per equity share (nominal value of share is Rs 10)
Basic (In Rs.) 30 334 296
Diluted (In Rs.) 30 324 2.81
Summary of Material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an internal part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the B?nﬁ{Spiu Money Limited
For §.R. Batliboi & Co, LLP L/‘V'
Chartered Accountants P
ICAI Firm Registration No, 301003E/E300005 Sunil Kumar Kapdor Srikrishna Narasimhan
?\_\, p. Director and Chief Financial Officer Director

per Anil Gupta
Partner
Membership No.: 087921 Chief Executive Officer

Mem. No.:A28280

Place: Mgus Deihi
Dale; May 22, 2025




Spice Money Limited
CIN-UT2900DL2000PLC 104989

Regd. Office: JA-122, ist Floor, DLF Tower - A, Jasola District Centre, New Delhi, India, 110025

Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Rs. in takhs)
2 < For the year ended For the year ended
Bieticatars s March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Cash Mows from operating activities
Profit before tax 207289 2,280.67
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Net gam on sale of property, plant and equipment 2 (0-38) (0.74)
Dep and p 2 405 87 547.01
Froperty, plant and equipment written off 28 720 W
Allowance for expected credit loss 28 156.99 2393
Bad debts/advances wntten off 28 28.51 3001
Interest income 2 (1,840.68) {1,884.89)
Interest income on unwinding of security deposits (0.52) -
Gain on derecogmition of financial lability 2 - (78 42)
Share based payment expense 25 31812 106 61
Finance cost 26 497.06 486.63
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,645.06 1,510,81
Working capital adjustments:
(Increase) in trade recervables (604.25) (275.46)
Decrease n nventones 97,28 264 45
(1 VD in i 1 and other assets (4,075.77) 1,717.10
I m habilities and pr 4,991 83 RES.39
Cash flows from operations 2.054.15 4,106.29
Income taxes refund (net of payments) 99.44 1,449.77
Nel cash flows from operating activities (A) 2,153.59 5,556.06
Cash Nows lrom investing activities
Purchase of p plant and equip lud gible assets (581.56) (804.60)
and intangible assets under develop 1]
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 285 092
{Increase) in bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (489.11) (907.11)
Interest received 1,855.29 1,773.04
Net cash Mows investing activities (B) 787.47 62,25
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from Calls in arrears 270.00 -
Payment of lease liabilities (36.92) (1.03)
Proceeds/ (Repayment) from short term borrowings (net) 5,094 87 (4,578.24)
Dividend paid on Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares (160.21) (165.00)
Redemption of preference shares (500,00} (500.00)
Finance cost (264.36) (173.20)
Net cash Mows fromi(used in) financing activities (C) 4,403.39 (5,417.47)
Net decrease in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C) 7,344 45 200,83
Cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 11,641.39 11,440 56
Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the vear !Ez!s.” 11,641.39
Components of cash & cash equivalents:
Cash on hand* 12 0.00 0,00
Cheques in hand 12 42 98 48.87
Balances with banks:
On current accounts 12 18,942.85 11,592.52
1898555 TTED

*less than one thousand




Notes:

a) Movement in liabilities under financing activities required under Ind AS — 7 “Statement of Cash Flows™:
Profevemce: Tntarcst Acerued Wit Lease Liabilities Bank Overdraft Total
Shares not due
As at 1 April 2023 3,297.88 - - 7,154,53 10,452.41
Cash flows movement:

Net proceeds/(Repayment) of liabilities (500,00} - (1.03) (4,578.24) (5,079.27)

Interest Paid (165.00) (173.15) - (338.15)
Non-cash flows movement:

Additions - - 16.26 - 16,26

Interest expenses 285.19 201.44 0.25 - 486,88

Gain on derecognition of liability (78.42) - - - (78.42)
As at March 31, 2024 2.839.65 18.29 15.48 2,576.29 5,459.70
As at 1st April 2024 2,839.65 28,29 1548 2,576.29 5,459.70
Cash flows movement:

Net proceeds/(Repayment) of liabilities (500.00) - (36.92) 5,004 87 4,557.95

Interest Paid (160.21) (264.36) - - (424.57)
won-cash flows movement:

Additions 22751 -

Interest expenses 247.40 237.54 12,11 - 497.05
As at March 3II1025 lﬁlﬁ.&l 1.4;1_ 218.18 Tﬂl.lﬁ 10, Al
b) The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared undet the “Indirect Method "as sct out in Ind AS - 7 “Statement of Cash Flows™.

c) Figures for the previous year have been regrouped/rearranged w idered Y.

d) The accompanying notes form an internal part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of ¢ ard of Spice Money Limited
For S.R. Batliboi & Co, LLP }h

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 30 1003E/E300005

Sunil Kumar Kapoor

DLp Q@—P

Anil Gupta Dili

Partner Chitf Executive Officer

Membership No.: 087921

Place: Niew Delhi
Date: May 22, 2025

Srikrishna Narasimhan
Director

Company Secretary
Mem. No.:A28280




Spice Money Limited

Regdl, Office: JA-122, 15t Floor, DLF Tower - A, Jasola District Centre, New Delhi, India, 110025
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Rs. in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

A Equity Share Capital

For the year ended March 31, 2025:

Orilinary Equity shares of Rs. 10 each Issued, subscribed and fully paid No. of shares Amount
At April 1, 2024 44,002,975 4,400.30
Changes m cquity share capital due to prior period crrors - -
Restated balance at the begining of current reparting period 44,002,975 4,400.30
Issue of share capital - .
Al March 31, 2025 44,002,078 440030
Isswed, subscribed and Fully paid up shares No. of shares Amount
Class B Shares: Equity shares of Rs. 10 each and paid up Rs. 10 cach

At April 1,2024 869,030 8.69
Changes m equity sharc capital due lo prior penod errors - -
Restated halance at the hegining of current reparting period 869,030 £.60
Receipt of calls in arrears - 78.21
At March 31, 2025 860,030 86,90

For the year ended March 31, 2024;

Ordinsry Equity shares of Rs, 10 each Isswed, suhscribed and fully paid No, of shares Amount
At April 1, 2023 44,002,975 4,400.30
Changes in equity share capital due to pror peniod ermors - -
Restated balance at the begining of current reporting period 44, 978 4,400, 30
Issue of share capital - -
At March 31, 2024 44,002 975 440030

Issued, subscribed and partly paid up shares
Class B Shares: Equity sharcs of Rs. 10 cach and paid up Rs. 1 cach

At April 1,2023 R60.030 .69
Changes m equity share capital due to prior period errors - =
Restated halance at the hegining of current reporting period 869,030 B.69
Issuc of share capital “ =
At March 31, 2024 B69. 030 5,69
Total Equity Share Capital as at March 31, 2025 44872 NS 4487.20
Total Equity Share Capital as st March 31, 2024 44,872,005 4,408.9%
B Other equity
For the year ended March 31, 2035
Reserve and surplus
Particulars Securities| Share buy back Capital| Share Based Payment| Retained| mm,,:‘",':," Total
premi reserve Reserve| Reservel ing
Balance as at 1 April 2024 335162 J11L.87 (429.65) 473.23 1.946.42 WSS 635444
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - - - - - - % 5
Restated balance as at April 1, 2024 335162 311.87 (429.65) 473.23 S00.00 1.946.42 20095 635444
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year = — . * ¥ 1.482.39 - 1,482.39
Other comprehensive mcome - . - 5 . 7.54 . 54
Total comprehensive income - - - - - 1,489.93 - 1,489.93
Receipt of calls in arrcars against ¢lass B shares 191.79 191.79
Share based pmyments - - - 31812 - - - 382
Share based pavment reserve transforred (o equaty (nct of ax) - - - (16.65) - 1246 - (4.19)
Om sccount of redemption of NCRPS (refer note 45) - - - - 500.00 (464.12) (35.88) -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 354341 311.87 429.65 774.70 (M) 2 | 1 B, 350,00
For the vear ended rch 31
Reserve and surplus
Deemed
Particalars Securities]  Share buy back Capital| Share Bayed Payment m:;;k:.:| Retsined|  cont ﬂb:f:'l Total
i reserve it Reservel Reserve carnings)
Resery:
Balance as at 1 April 2023 3,351.62 311.87 (429.65) 46593 - 919.53 23683 488613
Changes m accountmg policy or prior period crrors = i o N - . i 5
Restated balance as at April 1, 2023 3358162 31187 (429.65) 46593 - 219.53 23683 435613
Totsl comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the vear - - - - - 1,306.19 - 1,306.19
Other comprehensive mcome * - - - - 5198 - 5198
Tatal comprehensive income - - - - - 1,358.17 - 1358.17
Share based payments - - - 104 61 - - ¥ 106.61
Sharg based payment rescrve transferred to equity (net of tax) - - - (177.52) - 132 84 - (44.68)
On account of redemption of NCRPS {refer note 48) - - x % 300,00 (464.12) (35.88) 2
Balance as at March 31, 2024 33516 311.87 {429.65) 47323 SIHL00 1.946.42 200,95 6,276,23




Spice Money Limited

Regd. Office; JA-122, 13t Floor, DLF Tawer - A, Jasola District Centre, New Delhi, India, 110028
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2028

Ry, in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

B Other equity (continued) ) . . :

(i) Securities premium account rep amount of premi mahrdonmwfmmdwdnﬂenunprimmmumIafmwlneandmbuﬁhaedm dance with the p! of the Comp Agt, 2013,
(1) Share buy back roscrve account represcnts amount transferred from retained camings account on cancollation of equity shares bought back pursuant lo buy back scheme and can be utilized in accordance with the
provisions of the Companics Act, 013

{iii) Capital reserve represents mmuu:uedpeummScm:ufmuunmteﬂ‘miwhwﬁerwn and can be utilized in d with the provisions of the Companics Act, 2013,

(v} Share based paymient rescrve relates to stock options granted to employees under Employee Stock Option Plan 2015 and shall be ferred to ilics premi ined eammgs on el ! of
options (Refier note no.32)

{v} Retained carnings are profits eamed by the Company afior transfer to capital redem ption reserve and payment of dividend to sharcholders.

(vi) Deemed capital contribution 15 the portion of preferencs share capital created in accordance with Ind AS 109 arising on sccount of preference shares issucd to the holding company

{vit) Section 55 of the Compantes Act, 20113 requires that where preference shares are redcomed out of the profits of the company, there shall, out of such profits. be traneferred, a sum equal to the nominal amount of the
shares to be redeemed, 1o a resorve, to be called the Capital Redemplion Reserve Account, and the provisions of the Act relatmg to reduction of share capital of a company shall, except as provided in this section. apply as if
the Capital Redemption Reserve Account were paid-up share capital of the Company

The accompanymg notes form an internal part of the financial statements

For 5.R. Batlibol & Co. LLP

Chartored Accountants . /
1Al Fem Regtrsion No. 101003EE300003 ¢! f/: (

Sunil Kumar Kapoor Srikrishna Narasimhan
r y irgctor and Chief Financial Officer Director
DIY: 05322540

per Anil Gupta

As per our report of aven date For and on mumWspim Maney Limited

i
Parincr ¥ ntive Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.: 087921 Mem, Mo, :A28280

Place: hieww De Ihi
Date: May 22, 2025




Spice Money Limited

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN: U72900DL2000PLC104989

(Rs. in lakhs unless otherwise stated

1. Reporting Entity

Spice Money Limited (CIN-U72900DL2000PLC104989) (“the Company™) is a public Company
domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India.
The Company is one of India’s largest tech-enabled Hyper Local Payments Network offering various
services like Cash Deposit, Cash Withdrawal, Balance Inquiry, Bill Payments, Aadhaar Enabled
Services, Air Time Recharge, POS Services, Railway Ticketing Services, Cash Management Services
etc. through its authorized agents.

During the previous year, the registered office of the Company has been shifted to JA-122, 1st Floor,
DLF Tower - A, Jasola District Centre, Jamia Nagar, New Delhi, India, 110025 from 622, 6th Floor,
DLF Tower, Jasola District centre, New Delhi-1100235.

2. Material Accounting Policies

2.1 Status of Compliance:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time.

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting
policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements except where a
newly issued Ind AS is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard required a
change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 22, 2025 approved and authorized to issue the
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025. The financial statements once approved by the
Board of Directors needs to be adopted by the shareholders at the annual general meeting of the
Company. The Board of directors can withdraw and re-issue the financial statements so adopted only
in specific cases such as non-compliance with the applicable accounting standards, with the approval
of Tribunal, after following the appropriate procedure as per Companies Act, 2013.

2.2 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the
following measured at fair value:

- Financial instruments

- Defined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefits

- Share based payments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability, if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116 -




Spice Money Limited )
Notes 1o the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN: U72900D1.2000P1.C 104989

(Rs. in lakhs unless otherwise stated

Hability. the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability, if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the mcasurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116 — Leascs, and measurcments
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2
Inventories or value in use in Ind AS 36 - Impairment of Assets.

2.3. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian National Rupee (*27). which is the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest lakhs (X 00,000). except when otherwise indicated.

2.4 Summary of Material Accounting Policics

The material accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial statements are
listed below. Such accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these
financial statements, unless otherwise indicated.

A. Current versus non-current classification

The Company segregates assets and liabilities into current and non-current categories for presentation in
the balance sheel after considering its normal operating cycle and other criterix set out in Ind AS 1.
“Pregentation of Financia! Statements™. For this purpose, current assets and lHabilities include the curreat
nortion of non-current assets and liabilities respectively. Deferred tax assets and liabilitics arc always
classified as non-current.

The operating cyele is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash cquivalents. Based on the time involved between the acquisition ol assets for processing and then
realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has identified twelve months as its operating cvele
for determining current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet

15. Property, plaut, and cquipment

Items of Property., plant and equipment are stated «t cost of acquisition or construction less accumuiated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost which
represents the carrying value of property, plant and equipment recognised as at Ist April, 2015 measured
as per the previous Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). Cost includes all direct costs and
expenditures incurred to bring the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Borrowing
costs incurred during the period of construction is capitalised as part of cost of qualifying asset.

An item of property. plant and cquipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future cconomic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measurcd rehably. This
recognition principle is applied to costs incurred initiaily to acquire an item of property. plant and equipment
and also 1o costs incurred subsequently 1o add to, replace part of. All other repair and maintenance costs,




Spice Money Limited

Notes {o the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN: U72900D1.2000PLC 104989

(Rs. in lakhs unless otherwise stated

including regular servicing, arc recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. When a
replacement occurs, the carrying value of the replaced part is derecognised. Where an item of property.
plant and cquipment compises major components having different usciul lives, these components are
accounted for as separate items.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost. net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The gain or loss arising on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between sale proceeds and carrying value of such item. and is recognised in the statement of
profit and ioss.

C. Intangible assets

Intangible asscts acquived separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition or development less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost which represents
the carrying valuc of intangible asscts recognised as at Ist April. 2015 measured as per the previous
Generally Accepied Accounting Principles (GAAP). Internally generated intangibles. excluding capitalised
development costs. are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period
in which the expenditure is incurred.

Software (Inhouse Developed) product development costs are capitalized as incurred if technical and
commereial feasibility of the project is demonstrated, future cconomic benefits are probable, the Company
has an intention and ability to complete and use or sell the software and the costs can be measured reliably.
The costs which can be capitalized include material cost, employee benefits and other overhead cost that
arc dircetly attributable to preparing the assct for its intended usc.

I'he Company capitalizes intangible asset under development for a project in accordance w ith its accounting
policy. Initial capitalization of costs is based on management’s judgement that technological and economic
feasibility is confirmed. usually when a product development project has reached a defined milestone
according to an cstablished project management model.

D. Depreciation and amortisation of preperty. plant and equipment and intangible assets

Depreciation on all assets commenees from the dates the assets are available for their intended use and are
spread over their estimated useful economic lives. The estimated useful lives o asscts and residual values
are regularly reviewed and, when necessary, arc revised. ’

Depreciation is provided on straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the asscts as follows:

ey = ST T =
|
|

Nature | Useful Life of Assets |

|
| = Data Proccssing Machines - 1: [

Servers
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T Compwes L dyens |
K _l'umiln_rg:_and I"illiﬂg_s_: T _:f__}’ca_rf ]
|- Office Equipment (excluding mobile handsets) | Syears ‘
| - Mobile Handsets: i 3 years 1

- Payment Devices (Pin pad) T Svears |

| - “Vehicles - | 8years |

- - s ——

The Company, based on technical assessment and maragement estimate, depreciates certain items of data
processing machines. furniture and fixtures over estimated uscful lives whici are differeit from the usetul
life preseribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated
useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be

uscd.

e estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the
effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other economic factors (such as the stability of the
industry. and known technological advances), and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain
the expected future cash flows from the asset.

Intangible assets arc amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line

basis. from the date that they are available for usc. In case of computer software, the Company has estimated
useful fife of {ive vears or less

- Intangible assets | Estimated usefut life 5
} ; I _.__4: e =
| Computer software (Office} | 3 Years.

| Computer software (Site) I 5 Years

| In-house developed sofiware | 5 Years |

E. Borrowing Costs

I'he Company expense out all borrowing costs in the period in which they oceur. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

¥. Impairment of non-financial assets

i'he Company assesses, at cach reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an assct is required. the Company estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an assets or cash-generating
unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset. unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are lasgely independent of those from
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other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverabic
amount. the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverabiz amount.

In assessing value in usc, the estimated future cash {flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessmerits of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market fransactions are taken into
account. If no such transactions can be identified. an appropriate valuation model is used, These calculations
are corroborated by valuation multiples, queted share prices for publicly ttaded comparics or other
available fair vaiue indicators.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on izventories. are recognsed in the
statement of profit and loss.

Por assets an assessinent 18 made at cach reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses 1o lenger exist or have decreased. If such indication exists. the
Company estimates the asset’s or CG's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used 1o determine the asset s recoverabie
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is fimited so that the carry ing amount
of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carryviiig amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation. had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in piior years. Such
reversal is recognised in the Staiement of Profit and Loss. ' ) ' o

G. Inventorics
Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net reaiisable vaiue.

Costs ineurred in bringing cach product io its present location and cordition are accounted for as fellows:

Traded goads: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs. net of GE'T Input Credii. incurred in bringing
the inventories 1o their present location and condition Cost is determined on FIFO Basis.

Net realisable value is the esiimated sclling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs necessary o make the sale.

Provision for cost of obsolescence and other anticipated losses, wherever considered necessary. are
iceognised in the books of account.

H. Hevenue from contract with custemers

The Company is in the business of providing business correspondence scrvices through fintech platform
such as ALPS, Domestic Money Transfers, Cash management services. etc. and other digital hnancia
services. Company also is also having iicenses from government authorities such as IRCTC. NPCL ew. tor
providing services through digital platform,

Revenue from services is recognized when tie control in services is transferred as per the termas of tne
agreement with business partners i.c. as and when services are rendered.
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¢.g. Revenue from digital financial services and other services such as domestic money transter (DMT),
ALEPS. BBPS. CMS, Top up recharges cle. are recognized when the services are actually rendered on real
tine basis. Revenues are diselosed act of the Goods and Services Tax charged on such services. Any amount
anbilled as on year end is shown as trade receivables where the amount is recoverable from the customer
without any future performance obligation and the Company has unconditional right over such
consideration.

L. Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Company and tihie amount of income can be mieasured reliably. Interest income is accrucd on a time
proportionate basis. by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset's net carrying amonnt od initial recognition,

J. Income Taves
l'ax expense comprises current tax expense and deferred tax.

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxaiion authoritics. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that arc enacted or
substantively enacied, at the renorting date. '

Current tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit or loss is recognised outside statement
ol profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income of in equity). Current tax items arc recognised in
cerrelation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject 1o interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Current tax assets is offset against current tax liabilities if, and only il a legally enforceable vight exasts 10
set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the fiability simultancously.

Deferred iax
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax base
of assets and liabilities and their carrving amounts for financial reporting pusposes at the reperting daie

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused 1ax
credits and any unused tax losses. Delerred lax assels are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable nrofit wili be available against which the deduetible temporary differences. and the carry forward
of unuszd tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. Deferred tax liabilitics are generaily recognised
for all the taxabie temporary differences '
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The carrying amount of deferred tax asscts is reviewed at cach reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available 1o allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset 1o be utitised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that arc expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax Jlaws) that have been enacted or
substantively eaacted at the reporting date.

Deierred tax relating 1o items recognised outside statement of profit or loss is recognised outside statement
of profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in cquity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
carrelation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in cquity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to sct off curren
fax assets against current tax liabilitics and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

K. Emplovee benefits

Shart-term benefits’

e undiscounted amount of shori-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the serv ice
rendered by employees are reeognised during the period when the employee renders the services.

Defined contribution plans

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution schemeé. The Company has no
obligation. other than the contribution pavable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme and State Plans namely Employees' State lnsurance Fund. as an
expense. when an employee renders the related service. The Company’s contribution to Provident Fund is
made in accordance with the Statute and are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
services entitling them 1o the contribution.

Defined benefits plans

I'he Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to
a separately administered fund, Gratuity is a defined benefit obligation. “The cost of providing benefits under
the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method by actuarial valuer at cach
reporting date. In respect of post-retirement benelit re-measurements comprising of actuarial gains and
losses. the effect of the asset ceiling. excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined beneiit
liability and the rcturn on plan asscts, arc recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a correspending
debit or credit to retained carnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements arc
ot reclassified o statement of profit or loss in subsequent periods. Past service cost is recognised as an
expense when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs or when any related restructuring costs or
termination benefits are recogunised. whichever is earlier.
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Other long-term benefits
Accumulated leave. which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that
it expects 1o pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date. The
Company recognizes expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an expense, when an employce
renders the related service.

The Company treats accumulated leave expeeted to be carried forward beyond twelve months. as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based
on the actuarial vaiuation using the projected unit eredit method at the reporting date. Remeasurement gains/
losses on the compensated absences are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and arc not
deferred.

Shared Based Payments

The Company recognises compensation expense or cost relating to share-based payment in statement ol
profit and loss using fair value in accordance with Ind AS 102, "Sharc-based Payment”.
“I'he Company initially measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees using Black and
Scholes model to determine the fair value of the liability incurred. That cost is recognised, together with a
corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity, over the period in winch the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employce benefits expense. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The expense or credit in the statement of profit and loss for a period represents the
movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised
in employee benefits expense.

Iistimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate
valuation model. which is dependent on the lerms and conditions of the grant. Vesting conditions. other
than market conditions i.c. performance based condition are not taken into account when estimating the fair
value. This estimate also reguires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model
includine the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yicld and making assumptions about
them. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair valuc for share-based payment transacticns are
disclosed in note 32.

When the terms of an equity-settled award ase modificd, the minimum expense recognised is the grant date
fair value of the unmoditied award, provided the original vesting terms of the award are met. An additional
expense, measured as at the date of modification, is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair vatue of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee. Where an
award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award
is expensed immediately through profit or loss. '

The dilutive effeet of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilation in the computation of
diluted earnings per sharc.
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i.. i.cases

The Company assesses if’ a contract is or contains a lease at inception of ihe contract. A contract is, or
comtains, a icasc il the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period time
in exchange for consideration.

Company 2s a lessee

The Company recognizes a right-of-usc asset and a lease liability at the commencement date. except for
short-term leases of twelve months, which are expensed in the statement:of operations on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. The Company recogniscs lecase liabilities to make icase paymenis and right-oi-
use assets representing the right to nse the underlying assets.

Right-of-use asscts

l'he Company recognises right-of-use asscts at the commencement date of the lease (i.c., the date the
underlying asset is available for usc). Right-of~use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. and adjusted for any remeasurement of icase liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets inciudes the amount of fease liabiiities recognised. mitial direct costs incurred, and leasc
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of
the assets. as follows:

- Buildings 3 1o 3 years

bease Liabilitics
At the commencement date of the icase. the Company recognises lease liabilitics measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term.

In calculating the present valve of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencenient date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. Alter
the commencement date: the anount of lease liabilitics is inereased to reficet ine accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (¢.g.. changes to future
payments resuiting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such ease payments) or a change
in the assessinent of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

M. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when present obligations as a result of a past event will probably lead to an
outflow of economic resources and amounts cain be estimated reliably. Timing or atnount of the outliow.
may still be uncertain A present obligation arises when there is a presence of a legal or constructive
commitment that has resuited from past events. for example. legal disputes o onerous contracts. Provisions
arc not recognised for future operating losscs. '

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required 1o settle the present obligation, bascd on the
most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with
the present obligation. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of monzy is
material
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Any reimbursement that the Company can be virtually certain to collect from a third party with respect Lo
the obligation is recognised as a separate assct. However. this asset may not exceed the amount of the
related provision.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
In those cascs where the outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is considered
improbable or remote, no liability is recognised.

Contingent liubiiity is disclosed. for:

« Possible obligations which wili be confirmed enly by future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or

« Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that @ outilow ol resources will be
required 16 settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be maaoe.

Ihe Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence and vther required
disclosures in noies to the financial statements, unless the possibility of any outflow in scitlement is remote.

Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when inflow of cconomic benefits is probabie. related
asset is disclosed.

Provisions. contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at cach reporting date.

N. Earnings per share

Basic carnings per equity share is computed by dividing net profit after tax by the weighted average numbcer
of equity shares outstanding during the year, Diluted caraings per equity share is computed by dividing
adjusted net profit afier tax by the aggregate of weighted average number of cquity shares and dilutive
potential equity shares during the yeur.

0. Cash and cash equivalents

Cashi and cash cquivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

P. Fair vaiue ineasurcment

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments. the Company uses @ variety of meihods and
assumptions that arc based on market conditions and risks cxisting on initial recognition and at cach
reporting date. The methods used to determine fair alue include discounted cash flow analysis, available
(uoted market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair value result in general approximation
oi value. and such value may never actually be realized. For financial assets and liabilities maturing within
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one year from the Balance Sheet date and which are not carried at fair value, the carrying amounts
approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Fair value is the price that would be received to seli an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participams at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is direetly
obscrvable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an assct or a
liability. the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability, if market participants
would take those characieristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

In addition. for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements arc observabic and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety. which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices /net asset value (unadjusted) in active markets for identical asscts or
liabilitics that the company can access at the measurement date;

{.evel 2 inputs arc inputs, other than quoted prices (unadjusted) included within Level |, that are observable
for the asset or liability. cither dircetly or indirectly: and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Q. Segment reporting |

Operating segments arc reported In a manner consistent with the imerral reporting done te the chiet
operating decision maker, The board ‘of directors of the Company has been identified as being the chief
operating decision maker by the Management of the Company. 'he Company operates in a single operating
scgment and geographical segment.

. Financial instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities arc recognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument. Financial instrument {except trade receivabics) are
measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs, except for those carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Trade receivables are measured at their transaction price unless it contains a significant
linancing component in accordance with Ind AS 115 for pricing adjustments embedded in the contract.
Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilitics is deseribed below:

Subsequent measurement
i. Financial assets carried at amortised cost
A financial asset is measurcd at the amortised cost. if both the following conditions are met

« The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
fows, and ;

« Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPT) on the principai amount outstanding.

Afier initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method.
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ii. Investment in subsidiaries and associates

Investment in subsidiarics and associates are measured initially at costs. Subsequent to initial recognition.
vestment in subsidiarics. associates ard joint venture are stated at cost less impairment loss, if’ any.
Investmend in subsidiaries and associates are derecognised when they are sold or transferred. The difference
between the net proceeds on sales and the carrying amount of the investment is recognised in statement of
profit and loss in the year of derecognition.

S. Compound Financial Instrument

I'he component paits of compoad msttuments issued by the Company are classified scparatcly as linancial
liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument. Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of
a fixed amount of cash or dnother financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is an equity instrument. - :

At the date of issue. the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest
rate for similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is recorded as a liability on un amortised cost
basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s maturity
date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability component
from the fair value of the comgound instrument as a whole. The conversion option classified as equity will
remain in cquity until the conversion option is exercised, in which casc. the balance reeogriised in equity
will be transferred to other component of equity. When the conversion option remains uitexercised at the
maturity date of the convertible note, the balance recognised in equity will be translerred to reained
carnings. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the conversion
option. '

T. lmpairmest of financial assets

In accordance with 1nd AS 109, the Company applies expected credit ioss (ECL) model for mcasurcment
and recogrition of impairment loss for financial assets. ECL is the weighted-average of differcnice between
all contraciual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract anc all the cash
flows thai the Company expects to reccive, discounted at the origmal effective interest rate. with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights. When estimating the cash flows. the Company
considers

« Al contractual terms of the financial assets (including prepayment and extension) over the expected lite
ol the assets.

«  Cash flows from the sale of coliateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral o the
conractual terms.
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2025

i) Trade receivables:

In respeet of trade receivables. the Company applics the simplified approach of Ind AS 109. which requires
measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal 1o lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expecied
eredit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument.

it) Other financial assets:

In respect of its other financial assats, the Company assesses if the credit risk on thosc financial assels has
increased signilicantly since initial recognition. ! the credit risk has not increased significantly since initiai
recognition. the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal te [2-month expected credit
iosses, else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.

When making this assessment, the Company uscs the change in the risk of a default occurring over the
expected life of the financial asset To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default
oceurring on the financial asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial asset as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information.
that is available without undue cost or effort. that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since
initial recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the balance
sheet date.

iii) De-recognition of linancial ussets:

A financial asset is primarily de-recognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the assc
have expired or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

iv) Won-derivative financial liabilities

Subsequent measurement: Subsequent to initial recognition, all non-derivative financial liabilities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

De-recognition of finaneial liabifities: A financial liability is de-recagnized when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing finazcial liability 1s replaced by anether
from the same lender on substantially different rerms or the terms of 2n existing liability arc substantiaihy
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liabilitv and the
recognition of & rew liability. The ditference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised m the
statement of profit or loss. o )

Offsetting of financial instruments: Financial assets and financial liabilitics arc offset. and the net amount
is reported in the balance sheet ifthere is a currently enforccable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an inteation to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultancousiy
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2.5 New and amended standards
(i} Ind AS 117 lasuirunce Contracts

The Ministry of corporate Affairs (MCA) notified the Ind AS 117, Insurance Coniracis. vide notification
dated 12 August 2024. under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Ruales, 2024,
whicii is effeciive from annual reporting periods beginning on or after i April 2024.

Ind AS 17 Insurance Conrracts is a comprehiensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts
covering recoguition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Ind AS 117 replaces Ind AS (&
Insurance Contracts. Ind AS 117 applies to all types of insurance contracis. regardless of the type otentitics
that issue them as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation
features.

The application of Ind AS 117 had no impact on the Company’s financial statements as the Company has
not entered any contracts in the nature of insurance contracts covered under Ind AS 117,

(ii) Amendment to Ind AS 116 Leases — Lease Liability in Sale'and Leas¢back Transactions

The MCA notitica the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024, which
amend Ind AS 116, Leases, with respect 10 Lease Liability in Sale and Leaseback Transactions.

The amendment specifies the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising
in a sale and leaseback transaction. to ensure the seller-iessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or
loss that relates to the right of use it retains.

I'he amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024 and must be
applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered into afier the date of initial application o
ind As 116.

The amendment does not have any impact on the Company’s financial statements.

2.6 Climate - reiated matters

The Company considers climate-related matters in estimates and assum:ptions, where appropridte. 1his
assessment includes a wide range of possible impacts on the Company due to both physical and transition
risks. Dven though the Company believes its business model and products will still be viable after the
transtiion to a low-carbon cconomy, climate-related matters increase the uncertzinty in cstnnates ano
assumptions underpinning several iteins in the financial statements. Even though climate-related rishs might
not currently have a significant impact on measurement, the Company is closely monitoring relevant
changes and developments. such as new climate-ieiated legislation. The iemns and considerations that are
most dircetly impacted by climate-related matters are Useful life of property. plant and cquiprent und

Impairment of non-financial assets.
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3. Property, plant and equipment

d for the year ended March 31, 2025

; Computer Data| Furniture & Office i Total
Earibeaners processing Units fixture| equipment Vinlices (A)

Gross carrying amount:

Balance as at April 01, 2023 518.35 2.55 18.72 42.81 582.43
Additions 304.80 - - 4 304.80
Disposals (7.03) - - - (7.03)
Written off (2.02) - - - (2.02)

Balance as at March 31, 2024 814.10 2.55 18.72 42,81 878.18

Balance as at April 01, 2024 814.10 2.55 18.72 42.81 878.18
Additions 304.47 - 0.64 - 305.10
Disposals (12.56) - - (28.55) (41.11)

Balance as at March 31, 2025 1,106.00 2.55 19.36 14.26 1,142.17

Accumulated depreciation:

Balance as at April 01, 2023 423.32 1.33 11,81 39.13 475.59

Depreciation 128.11 0.20 1.81 1.74 131.85

Disposals (6.85) - - - (6.85)

Written off (2.02) - - - (2.02)

Balance as at March 31, 2024 542,56 1.53 13.62 40.87 598.57

Balance as at April 01, 2024 542.56 1.53 13.62 40.87 598.57

Depreciation 179.51 0.18 1.65 0.01 181.35

Disposals (11.31) - - (27.33) (38.64)

Balance as at March 31, 2025 710.76 1.71 15.27 13.55 741.28

Net carrying amount

As at March 31, 2025 395.24 0.84 4,09 0.71 400.89

As at March 31, 2024 271.54 1.02 5.10 1.94 279.61
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4. Intangible assets

In-house
Particulars C:;:::’::: developed Total Iutangible asscts
Software under development

Cost:
Balance as at April 1, 2023 565.08 1,399.63 1,964.71 226.59
Additions 0.16 - 0.16 650.38
Additions — being internally developed - 239.54 239.54 (239.54)
Written off (117.50) (192.00) (309.50) -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 447.74 1,447.17 1,894.91 637.43
Balance as at April 1, 2024 447.74 1,447.17 1,894.91 637.43
Additions 61.96 - 61.96 80.00
Additions — being internally developed - 626.23 626.23 (626.23)
Capitalized in Computer sofiware “ - - (20.00)
Written off - = = (7.20)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 509.70 2,073.40 2,583.10 64.00
Amortisation;
Balance as at April 1, 2023 289.08 1,399.63 1,688.71 -
Amortisation 174.70 239.54 414.24 -
Written off (117.50) (192.00) (309.50) -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 346.28 1,447,17 1,793.45 -
Balance as at April 1, 2024 346.28 1,447.17 1,793.45 -
Amortisation 65.96 123.85 189.82 -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 412.24 1,571.02 1,983.27 -
Net book value:
As at March 31, 2025 97.46 502.38 599.83 64.00
As at Mareh 31, 2024 101.46 - 101.46 637.43

Note: Intangible assets under development include cost incurred for additional capabilities in relation to Spice Pay project.

Intangible assets under development ageing schedule

As at March 31, 2025

Amount in CWIP for a period of

i 1
Intangible assets under development =1 vear 12 years Tl veave R p—— Total
Projects in progress 64.00 - - - 64.00
Projects temporarily suspended - - # - -
As at March 31, 2024
Amount in CWIP for a period of
i 1 Total
Intangible assets under development <1 vyear 1-2 years T 3 veary Miore than 3 years
Projects in progress 607.54 29.89 - - 637.43

Projects temporarily suspended

Note:

1. There were no temporarily suspended projects and/or no time overrun and/or cost overrun for the intangible assets under development as at March

31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,

2. During the year ended March 31.2024, the Company had capitalised an amount of Rs. 239.54 lakhs and have fully amortised basis the closure of old
— Spice Pay Platform and amortised fully the written down value of some softwares of Rs. 66.29 lakhs in the previous financial year by way of

accelerated amortisation,
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5. Leases

Company as a lessee

The Company has three lease contracts for buildings used in its operations namely- Warehouse, Mohali office and Guest House.
Lease of building of warehouse has a Iease term of 3 years, lease of building of Mohali has a lease term of 5 years and Guest House
has a lease term of 3 years | month, The Company's obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets.
Generally, the Company is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased asset.

The Company also has certain leases with lease terms of 12 months or less and with low value, The Company applies the shori-term
leasc” and “lease of low-value assets™ recognition exemptions for these leases.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the period:

Particulars Amount
Gross carrying amount
Balance as at April 01, 2023 “
Additions 16.51
Balance as at March 31, 2024 16.51
Balance as at April 01, 2024 16.51
Additions 230.49
Balance as at March 31, 2025 247.00
Depreciation
Balance as at April 01, 2023 -
Depreciation expense 0.92
Balance as at March 31, 2024 0.92
Balance as at April 01, 2024 0.92
Depreciation expense 34,70
Balance as at March 31, 2025 35.62
Net carrying amount
As at March 31, 2025 211.38
As at March 31, 2024 15.59

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:

Particulars March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Opening balance 15.48 -
Additions 227.51 16.26
Aceretion of interest 12.11 0.25
Actual Rent expenses (36.92) (1.03)
Closing balance 218.18 15.48
Current 51.65 5.85
Non-current 166.53 9.63

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in Note 43.
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities of warehouse is 9.51%, for Guest house is 8.67% and for Mohali office is 8.32%
The following are the amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024




Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 34.70 0.92
Interest expense on lease liabilities 12,11 0.25

Total amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss 46.81 1.17

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of Rs. 369.65 lakhs in March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: Rs. 357.32 lakhs).
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. Investments
As at Asat
Triedsny a0 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
As ut
March 31, 2626 March 31, 28 Nom-current Current Non-current Current
Al Amorfived cost:
Unguoted equity shares:
Investment In suhsidiary
Kimaan Exports Private Limated (Face vabue Re 10} 20,000 20,0041 6,276.00 - 6,276 00
Tivesteent in fellow subsidiaries
Vikesni Fistech Private Lamited (Face value Rs. 101) 4,500 4,500 049 5 49 =
E-arth Travel Solutions Private Lumsted (Face vakie Rz 10] 5,000 5,000 050 - 050
Total imvestments 276.59 - 6,276.99 -
Aggregste vahse of unquoted Investments £276.99 £276.99 -
7. Loars
As at March J1, 3028 AvalMarchdT, 028
U Amortised cost: Nom-current Current Nofi-current Current
Uncecured considered puad
Lisimes 1o emplovees 20,00 - -
L.oam to others 148,16 - 148 16
Total - _I6h1e p LN
R. Other finuncial assots
As ut March 31, 2028 v at March 31,
mt Current Current
At Amartived comt:
Unsecured considered good, unless wtherwive stoted
Securily deposits 24w 63,30 23225 -
lisewest nccred on fived depossts - 349 K8 - kELET ]
Interent aceued on icome o rafund - = = 2598
Recervabie on settiemeni of service ransactions 2 218312 - BS0 18
Fined deposita with banks baving crigimal maturity of fiore than 12 months (noe 13) BG5S TS 736133 RETEN) -
Dther receivahles
- from related parties {refer note 3} - 3383 . 1211
- from emplov - 5108 - 4548
.mum'm ~ 2847 - 3515
L9569 18,273.11 354607 129741
Less: 1y ! o other i {190 u | 00
Total 1,095.69 18,271.21 354607 1,295.51
9. Other saseds
As #t March J1, 2028 ‘A3 0l Minrch 31, 2024
JNopp-current Current Non-current Current
Unsecured comvidered guod, unless atherwive stated
Advances to emplovees 680 - 2218
Advancat 1o service providers
- o related parties frefier note 14) 10338 O 30
- 1o others - 3350500 - LII2ER
Prepeid expenses 1346 443 50 1335 40407
Balance with Govemament athonities = 72038 - 679.5]
[EES THEl 1335 128510
Lesa, imparismsentt allowance for advances i service providers - (149.43) ] (1907
Total [EX3 473570 1338 26603
18, Invemtories (at kiwer of cost and pet realisable vahue)
Asmt Asat
March ;%,m March 31, 2624
Stock-in-trade 1189 21017
Tatal 112.89 10,17

The eost of ivantones recognised as an expense inchudes Rs 9 50 lakha (for the year ended March 31, 2024 - Bs 0 77 lakha] in respect of write-downs of mventory bo net reslisble value.

Inventory mchades stock i transdt Re. Nil lakhs (2s on March 31, 2024 Rs. 1875 Lakhs).
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11. Trade receivables
Axat Asat
March 31, 2025 Muarch g|! 024
Trade recervables 1,254.43 5201
Unbillesd revernie from rebated party (refer note 34) 9647 -
Unialled revenue 139049 131178
Titul 21, 741.39 2,163.76
Trade receivables:
Secured, consudered pood - W
Unsecured, conssderad good 2,741 39 2,163.76
Trade receswahlos which have spmficant icranse i credit Risk . =
Trale recervmbles - credit mspamad 2662 297
2,768.01 L166,73

Impairment wllowance (aliowance fior bad and doubtfisl debis)

Tradde recensablen - credit mpawed 2662 297
Tital

179139 116376
.anndeacwhummnuewdmhmmumwmmawlu\ in which any dmector 1= a pariner, 4 director of 4 member
- I'r-dcmubhmmumhwm‘mdmg:mlb'whmnmlumdlysmmmmmmuﬁ
- Refer Note Na 38 for detnils of Provision for Fxpected Credit Losses,
Trade recoivable ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2025 Outstanding far fol oy From due date of ent
|Partcutars mn-.! mm] [""‘"ﬂ & montha - 1 ,n:’ 12 ;m.i z-syunl Mare than 3 yea Tnul]
Undispited
= Consmdered good G811 1,486 65 52284 10938 441 - . 2,741 39
- Whech have signiicant merease in credit nsk - - - - - - ¥ =
= Credit smpasned B - 18 207 410 - - 2662
Disputed
- Consadared good - - & - & a - -
- Which bave sigmificant increase m credit risk - - - - - - = -
= Credit impasmed - - s - . i " .
Total | 61811 | 148695 | 524,35 | 13009 | 851 -1 =1 . Fan01
As a1 March 31, 2024 | Outstanding for follaw fram due date of =]
e
[Parsicuiars ! N-m.e!' u.d-nu[ Losthand] oo 1 12 !-Jynhl More than 3 ytlrn.l Tnulr
Undisputed
= Conssdered good 1511 151175 ELE A 12118 - - - L6376
- Which bave significant merease m credit tisk - - - - - = B &
- Credit impatred . - - - 297 - - 297
i tedd

- Conssdered good = - 5 = - . . -
= Whach have significant merease m credst nsk = E . - % & i =
= Credh! ympaared - - - - - - . 5
(Total 1 17501 | 151175 | 35472 | 122,18 | 257 | =1 B | 1,16673
12, Cash and cash equivalents

Asat Asmt

31 1,

Balunce with banks:
O current accounts # 1E.042 84 11,592,582
Cheques on hand 4298 ARET
Crsh o harsd #8 000 _000
Total —_IR9RSET 1164139
# “The mmount i current accound i lides balances i escrow sccouts of Ks. 360.76 lekhs (March 31, 2024 Rs 12531 lakhs)
## full figure 1z Re. 360 (Previous vear-Rs 360)
Amot of ftx M2 TS lakha (March ¥, 2024 Rs 274 51 fakhs) have hoen lencd nsrkesd by banks sgainst fradsaiont eanssctions
13, Bank bakances other than ahove

Asnt As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Deposits with origmal matunty of more then 3 months bt less than 12 months 16,381.22 2100738
Deposits with oryginal matusity of more than |2 months bl remaining matanty of less than 12 months 756334 -
Dieposits vath remamizg matarety of more than twelve months 865 75 131382
Sub-tatal* 24.810.31 HIz21.20
Lese Amount disciossd wnder financial asssts (Mote B) 408 331382
Total 1638123 2000736

* Includes deposita of Ka 13227 70 lakhs (March 31, 2004 ru.|3.m.zlw.;mwmunmnhmmmmmmd@mm.
Deposits of Rs 383608 lakhs (March 31, 2024 Rs 3,562 37 lakhs) hen marked against seftlement of BEPS transsctions,

Tieposits of Rs 25% 31 lakhe (March 31, 2024 Ra. 241 26 Iakhs ) lven nuarkes! agmmst pre paid instnasent busmess,

Deposits of Rs. 8913 lakhs (March 31, 2024 Rs 8286 lakhs) pledged agmnst issue of bank guarantees,

Depossts of Rs 2541 lakhs (March 31,2024 Rs. 25.00 lakhs) bien markod against issoc of corporaie credit cand

Deposits of s 30 85 lakhs (March 11, 3034 il lien marked against FLDGO srrngement with LORO Capital
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14, Share capitalEquity share capital

Anat Anwt

Murch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Authorised share capital
6,70,00,000 {as at March 31, 2024: £,70,060,000) Equity shares of Rs, 10 each &,700.80 6. 70,00
330,060,000 {as at March 71, 2024- 3,300 ¢ bie Redesmable Proference Shares (NCRPS) of Rs. 10 each 330000 3.300.80
Tota 1000000 1050000
Issued share capital
Equity share capiral:
Ordinary Shares 4.40,02.975 (as a1 March 31, 2024 4,40,02.975) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each; fully called up and paid up 4,400.30 4,400.30
Class B Shares. B.69.030 (as at March 31, 2024: 8,65,030) Equity shares of Rs. 10 cach, R 10 caled up, fully pasd wp (March 31, 2024: Rs. 10 called up, Rs. 1 paid up) 86,90 §6.90
NCRPS: 2,30,00,000 (as a1 March 31, 2024. 2,80,00,000) face vahue of Rs, 10 sach fully calied up ] #
ok 448720 EXTSHT

¥Profcrence Stares covers the debt component and deemed capital contribution of the issued convenible preforence shares. The deemed capital contribution is inchuded m other exquity and Hability component is inchuded i1
borrow mgs (refer note 15 and 16 Tespectively)

Subscribed and fully paid share capital

Ordinary Shares: 4.40,02,975 (as at March 31, 2022: 4,40,02,975) Bquity shares of Rs. 10 sach 4,400.30 440030
4,400, 440030

Subscribed but not fully paid share capital

Class B Shares 8,69,030, Rs 10 called wp each (as &l March 31, 2024: 8,659,030, Rs 10 called up cach) Bquity shares of Rs. 10 sach* RE90 BA. 50

Less: Calls in arrcars Rs. 0 unpaid each (as at March 31, 2024: Rs 9 unpaid sach) - TR.21

—_— B 568
—e A 440890

*During the current vear, the company has received towards second and third and fnal call of Rs 345 per share and Rs. 27 62 per share respectively, Rs 9 towards nominal value and Rs 2207 towards securities premium,
amounting o Ks. 270,00 lakhs.

A. Reconciliation of the sumber of shares and amount of authorised share capital af the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:
Axat As at Asat As al

March 31,2008 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
- No. of Share Rs. i lakhs No. of Share s, in lnkbs
Equity Shares

At the heginning of the year 7,000, 0000 700,00 00,000 6,000.00
Charsge in authorised capital -

7,000,000 000
Al the end of the year 67,008,000 &,700.00 ﬂlﬁl_“_ 6.700.00

Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares

Al the begmning of the year 33,000 000 3,300,080 - =
Change in authonsed capital 33,000,000 3,300.00
Al the endd of the year 33,000,004 3,300, i) 33,000,000 3,300.00

Special resolution was passod by members at its extra-ordinary general meeting of equity share holders held on January 15, 2024 for change in authorised share capital.

B. Reconciliation of the aumber of shares and amount outitanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:
As ut As ut

Asat As at
March 31, 2028 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2024
No. of shares Hs, in lakhy No. of shares Rs. im lakhs
Ordinary Shares
Outstanding at the begitining of the vear 44,002,978 4,400.30 44,002,975 4,400,308
Issued during the year 2 - - -
Outstanding at the ond of the year 44_%_!’7! 1.«»._3' 44,002,975 4.408.30
Class I Shares
Ouwsandmg at the begmning of the year 65,030 B9 H69,030 069
Receipt of calls m: arrears dunng the year - 78.21 - -
Orutseanding at the end of the year R69.030 H6.50 69,030 R.69
Lat Compulsory C Prefe Shares (CCCPS)
Ortstanding al the heginning of the year - - 33,000,000 330400
CCCPS converted to NCRPS = (33,000,006 {3,300.00)
Outstancting at the end of the year = L = =

Non-Coavertible Redecmable Prefercace Shares (NCRPS)

Outsinndding af the heginning of the vear 28,000,000 2,800,006 % =

CCCTS converted 1o NCRPS - - 33,000,000 3,300.00
Redemgstion during the year 5 L) SO0, 0] 5,00, D00 {SEL00
Ohstanding at the end of the vear 2,300,060 00

C. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached o equity shares

= The Company has two classes of equity shases as bolow:

Ordinary shares: These shares havea par valug of Rs. 10 pullua'e_.AJIequirymrwi:equa!lywnhmgm!mdivkiend:Mﬂunhm(?umwmmidnﬂmmwhdi;m“nqnityﬁm are entitled 1o receive
dividend s declared from time to time, ‘The votmg rights of an ordinary shareholder are in proportion to amount paid on equity shara, Voting rights cannol be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other sums
presently payabie has not been paid.

Class B shares: Hach Class B Share shall have a par value of Rs. 10 and is issued at premium of Ks. 14,52 These equity shares of the Company shall carry differential voting rights vis a vis Ordinary Shares, 3
cw.ly.‘-l‘.‘lauB.Qhamw-jlllu\'!nmwiemmmhnumamnpuidmchnnm:ydnm.mvymnmwh" garded for the purp Tsuch [voting power. With the exception of voting rights, for all
odmmum!het'luqunmﬂ-l[nnkpmpuulnlehmrym

Call Call Da of re m 5

On Application 5% 1.7 .50 13 Received

First Call £3-Dec-21 - 1m 0.50 1.23  Called and Receved
Second Ca 13-Dec-22 1% 345 100 245 Called and Received

Third st final Call 13-Dec-13 8% 2762 £.00 1962 Called and Received

R S 7] 2451
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14, Share cap quity share capital d|
0. Shares held by holding Compamy
Ot ol shares ssued by the Ci . detmils of shares held by Di]

Lamsted, the hold, y 1 a8 heiow:

Asat Asat
by March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024
4,34, 51,475 (March 31, 2024 4,34,51 478} equaty shares 434515 434515
23000000 (March 3, 2024 280,050,000 NCRPS 2,300.00 280000
Total 664515 714515
E. Details of sharehalders halding more than 5% shures in the Company
5
Name of the sharcholder A at Warch 31, 3005 AsatMarch 3L, 004
No. of Shares % of Holding No.of Shaves % of Holding
DiGspice Technalagies Limited, the Hokding Company
-Exqusty Shares of Rs. 10 each fally paid 43451475 96 .83 43451475 96 83
NCRPS of Rs 10 cach fully paid 2,30,00 000 100.00 2,80,00,000 160,00
F. Mo shares have been allotted without payment of cash or by way of bonus shares duning the perod of five years mmediately preceding fhe balance sheet date
G. Sharcholdings of Promoters as at March 31, 2028
Dumbar ot Numbers of Shares
SN Frometer Nume bty m‘.:;:::i- momssuhr ol ol Mare ““"";’_‘:‘"“""
sear i
o Dthnpice Techuologaes Limsted, the holdmg compsisy
-Fquity Shares of Rs. 10 ench fally paid 4,34,51,475 - - LR =
<NCRPS of Rs 10 each fully pad 2.80,00,000 {50,00,0000 2,300,000 100 00 106 00
Shureboldings of Promoters as st March 31, 2024
Numbers of
Numbers of Shares
B Na  Premekr Name Swrcamtthe  Changeduring =\ iotie  Siof TeiaiShares 70 CHERKE during the
Ieginning of the the year year
" el
i) DhiGspace Technologies Limed, the holding company
-Equity Shares of Rs 10 each fully pasd 4431475 43451475 96.E3 =
COTPR of s 10 ench fully paid 3,30,00,000 3,340,060, 0000} - . {10000}
-NCRPS of Ra. 10 aach fully pasd - 2,50 01 2,80,00,000 Lleits] 10000
15, Dther equity
Asat Asal
a) Secunties premim 354341 335162
v Share by hack reserve account JILET 3187
&} Capital reserve (42065) (42965)
) Share based pavment reserve 696 49 30502
a} Relsined camings 2,084 69 1,946.42
[ Deemed captal conaribusion 16507 20095
2 Capatal redemplion reserve 1 11] 500,00
Trtal 827158 27623
) Securities premium
Opening halance 335162 135162
Add  Premmum on Class B equaty shanes received jssued 15 17050
Lesa: Calis m arroars Rn 0 unpasd each {ns of Masch 31, 2024 Rs 9 unpasd each) - {170.50)
Clasing balunce 354341 3,351.62
I} Skeare buy back reserve acoount
Openmg balance 3187 31187
Additions dunng the vear - 2
Claxing balance ATLAT 31LET
<) Capital reserve
Openmg balance (42965 {429.65)
Additions durmg the vear = z
Clasing balance (423.63) (429.65),
) Shure based payment reserve
u,m: balanice 39502 465.93
Addsticns durimg the year BT 106.61
Less: Lapsed ESOPs transferned to reluned cammgs (1668) (177.52)
Clasing halance 696,49 39500
) Retwined earnings
balance 194642 919.53
Akl Net Profit for the year 1,489.53 135817
Add Lapsei FSOPs ransfemed from Share based paymesit resorve (net of ) (Gross Rs. 16.65 lnkhs, previous year- Rs. 177.52 lakhs) 1246 13284
Less: Transferred to Capital redemplion reserve on redeniption of NCRPS (500007 (500 00)
Add: Transfirred from decmed capatal contributzon 358 3568
Closing bulance 1ALED [T
1 Deemed capital contribution
Opening halance 10095 BEE3
Less Transferred o retumed camngs (35 B8R} (35 8BR)
Closing balance 16507 20855
E) Capitnl redemption reserve
Opening balance 500 00 -
Additins duning the vear 300,00 S00.00
Closing balance 1,008,050 Soa.00
Bor:
1% Roroming Ko Maveh 313025 TEEN T
Now-current Current il Current
Secured:
Cwendrafl facslities from hanks # TETLI6 - 2,576.29
f—— 242685 28539 2254.26
E3abl portion of nom convertibie redeemahie prefience shares (refer note 451 - A . .
- 1 a1 585,39 483058

# b the cusrrent vear and previous vear, overdrft Facilibies from bank ane secured by pledge of fived deposit with banks The facilitios camed an average mierest ol 763% as ot March 11, 2025 (March 31, 2024 8 17%)

17 Other Hubilities
at rel N & at March 31, 4

MNon-current Current Nom-current Current
Prefunded/sestlcment balances of agents - 33.75047 - 29652 11
Theersics from customens 12507 < 101389 :
Defemed revenue - 245.95 - #4.50
Advances From cusiomerns 'I'E -I,g L 33188
Tinspent smount of CSR i : i

Statutory dues payabic
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12507 35,044.24 103,89 H.969.84
18, Provisians
A3 at Miarch 31, 202% As i March 31, 20230 i
ual Current Curreat

Prowision for emplayees benefits

Grahaty (Refer Note 31) 47577 008 6837 1 51

Compensated ahsences T 47 N748 %150
Provisson sgmnst GRT under duspute - 10.26 - 10.26
Other Provision® - 4270 & e
Tatal 749.50 157,79 SH5RE 28427

* Other Provision melades provisson made for likely Pevost of incentives to employees
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T Frov 4
Pa
rticulars Asat Avnt Asat Asal
Opening halance = g
Onening e - Il:ﬁ .26
Reversalf i sations : : 5 .
Closing balance 42.70 - 1826 — 126
19.Trade puyahles

Asut Asat

Murch 31, 2025 March 31,
Trade pavables 1o related parties (refer note 34 == = _h.ﬁ Jia:.ui

Trnde pavables (refor note 42 for details of due o isicre and small averpnses )

~Unitstanding dues of Micro & Smal] Enterprises 1510 20.21
~Chitstanding dues of Other than Micro & Small Enterpriscs 145601 1,290 55
Net balance 1,585.12 134677

- Duae o piero aivd small enterprises have boen dolermunad 1o the extent such parties have been identified by the Compasy on the hasis of information collectod (Refer note no 337

Trade puyshlc ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2025

|Particutars Outstanding for Tollowing periods frem due daie af 1
1 Unbilled Mot Due|  Loss than 1 vos 1-2 2-3 Mare than 3 years Total
1110 282 1510
026 9% 55 0 151 50 208 Tasn0s |
1,828.13 | 28018 XN/ 09 - - 150812
Duisinnding for rils from due dute af 1
Unbilied ot Due] Lews than 1 year t-zw_ﬁﬁmﬂ___u
1221 300 - - - = 2021
TIG9 68 | 314 06 A2 00 [PRE] [T . T,326.5 |
IR 22206 1] [N [15] - 134677
20, Other finuwcial linhilities
s al 1, 2025 5 ot Ma [
Non-current Current Nan-current Current
Inerest moorued bt ot due = Lag - 2829
Emplovees related payable® - 3056 - 73594
Capstal creditors . . s 154 50
Payable on siflement of service irarsactions - 1409 30 £ 399.27
Total - 24734 = LAIEB
"For Related Pany Transactions, Refer Note No_ 34 e
For the year ended Far the year ended
21, Revense from aperation March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from Contract with Castomers
Sale of digital finencial services and other services 4261194 4288727
Sale of producis 1LAT1 64
Wratten hack of unclaimed balmces 36367
Toal —ETE L A3MISE
a, of revenne hased ing of o af revema:
. Servicespmducts trensferved al pomd m ime 43 5408 64 4327748
b Services transiemed over time 1.2085] 665,08
Total Revenue from comtract with Customers 44847.55 giﬁss
. Disnggregation of revenus based on primary geogrsphical market:
India 4484755 43941 56
outside Indi g A
Tatal Revense from contract with custamers A4 R47.38 -u.m__!_c_
© Contract assets primarily relate to the Compamy's right &0 considerstion o work completed bat not billed a1 the reporting date. The contract assots are transfered t0 recoivables when the nights become encondstional This
usually oocurs when the Company 195Ues an 1¥0sce ko the acquinng bank As at repocting date, the Company had no contract assets ss the Company has i rights o th d 31,2024 Nil)
‘Contract habsties relate to an entity's obligation 4o tnsfer services I o cstomar for which the entity has d from ty

For coniract lmbilities (defemed revenuel, refer note 17

Cantract balances
The followeng table provides infomation abowl trade roceivables, contract asscls and contract habelbes fom contracts with oustomens

As at As at
fiching March 31, 2625 March 31, 2024

Tintlled revenae [ 148656 1,511.75
Trade recervables: n 125443 a52.01
17 24595 2450

Deforred revennie
Audvances from customers 17 T I3RS




Splce Money Limited
Ntes tn the financiel statements av at wnd far the year ended March 31, 2025
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(Rs. in lukhs undess atherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
2028

22, Other Incinne
31, 2024
Fmterest trcome on financeal assels messuned ol amortised cost
Teank depasits 179301 1,664 57
Tncame e roftind A7 67 2lsm
OHhers 0352 -
it on dezecognition of financeal habylsy - TRA2
Bt gum on sale of property, plant & equipment 38 074
Lishihities no loner requéred, whtten hack 69.22 70,90
Other Incomme 077 -
191157 283408
23, Change in Inventories of traded gaods For the year ended For the year snded
31 Mai
Tnvemtary al the beginnng of the year 1 462
Less: unventory at the end of the voar 11289 210,47
Total change in inventories of fraded goods [ 26445
4. Service & Commivsion Charges For the year ended P e Yoor sred
£l
Apent and distributor commssion B1T0R 2133113
Other service cost 283194 295235
BT 26T
15, Emplayee henefits expenses For the year onded N;:: yuar snded
Salanes. wages snd hanus E522 59 B4R 24
Contrabaton 1o provadent fnd S0 86 51728
Cirntunty expense (Refer Note 31 16349 134.46
Share hased pavment expense | Refer Note 32) k2 106,61
Staff welfire expenses. 15011 14141
10,866.17 9.548.08
less: transferred to intangible assets under development - (168,74
10,066,17 3,379.26

The Indian Parhament has approved the Cade on Socml Secanty, 2000, which would ungnct the habshty towards Provident Fund and Gratusty The effective date from which the changes are applicable 1s vel to be notified and
the final nles are vet o he framed The Commpany wall camy mlnmhulmnl'lh:m:pmnlmwlngumonlhefhunduumhmﬂnmdmwhchﬂuendemdﬁmuwmndnnmm

For the year ended Far the year ended

16, Finance costs
Imierest on
Barrewings AR4 .40 w611
Lense Liakalitses nn L1 ]
5 0.35 027
Total 497,06 486,63

7.0 und amortization exp

Far the year ended For the year ended
1

092
414 24

BT

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Note 3)
Amortisation on nght of use assels (Note 5)
Amortsahion on intangible assets (Nole 4)




Spice Mopey Limited

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN: UT29MDL2MGPLC 114989

(Rs. in lnkhs unless atherwise stated)

2R. Other expenses

Far the year ended Far the year ended
S M 3

Rent 56 20
Futes and taves nn
Insurance 7413
Ripas & Munlenance — Compulers, equipnients and olliers Ald g
Electricaty and water 2264
Advertiang and sales promotion 147 38
Travelling and conveyance L5002
Networkmg and Commemcation costs R5T 76
Technology service provider =
Legal and pmfessional foos (Refer noke A balaw| 1,563 43
Directars’ sitling fees 3100
Pavment 1o sulitors (Refer note B helow) sLal
Vahiche nimming and maintensnce 515,90
Allowances for expected credst hosses 2393
Intangibies under development writion off 5
Had debtsindvances wnitten ol o
Ierest and Penalties 1461
Cosparate social responsbility expendstuse (Refer note C helow) 4,00
Miscellancous sxponacs 24340
e : 7,62 5,550.23
tramsfemred to imlangibh under develoy - (106 5)
A66T.6D 5451.18
#lnmvupuinnrksnl?lmum-thil,ma-R-IA52I.I;h)-w.drersmzuqm.paummmmlnmﬂummmhmcmmama..
 Thin doms not 1nchude the previons yens provisicns for doabiful debis which have been writion off as bad g the year g loRs 297 31.2024: Ra 84 12 lakhs).
A Legal and professional fees
Call Centre expenses 35200 48617
Consubiants and etsouirced resource cost $07.93 671.86
Others P 1 -1

L . — 343

B. Payment to auditars

As nuditor:
Ftatutary audit fee 2910 2800
Tax asdit foc E 250
Lamitad review 2050 16.00

Tn other capacity:-
Centification fe a0 055
Special puposs Audit 9,00 .
Resmbirsement of expenses 7.72 1.9

65,72 51.01

C. Details of CSR expenditure
The Company had made voluntary contribution towards Corporate Social Respoasibility (CSR ) activities under scction 175 of the Companies Act. 2013 dunng FY 2023.24. However, durmg FY 2024-25, the Company was
required 1o spem towards CSR. Necessary detazls are as disclosed below

For the year ended For the vear ended
024

March 31,

a} Gross amounit required 1o be spenl T the Company dirnng (he vear 812 -
b Amount approved by the hoand 1n he spent dunng the vear M2 A a4
€} Amount spent during the current year: Tnecash  Yet to be paid in cash Total
+) Constraction ‘scquisiion of any ssset - - -
1) O parpases other than (1) shove 2100 m %12
o) Amvount spent during the previous vesr: Incash  Yet to be pakd in cash Total
1} Construction Mcquisstion of any assel - - >
11O puirposes. other than (1) above 4000 - A0
) Detuils of related party transactions (refer mote 34 for details) w12 40.00
1) Detnils related to spentiunspent shigation:

~Contribation to pablc tnest ey =

~Centribution 1o charitable irust 2;?2 4000

-Linspont wmoust @ relaton io ongomg project
~Utnspent amount in relatson o other than engoing prosect - -

&) CSR expenditure bms hoon incurred for rural development and gender equality,

) AN amounts that are nepent under sub section (5) of Section 135 af Companies Act, pursuant wo wny sngoing praject, has been transferred ta special sccount bn compliance of with pravisions of sub section (&) of
Section 135 of the said Act,

1) In respect of other than oagolng projects, there are no umspent amousts that ure required ta be transferred to 8 fund specified in Schedule VIL of the Companies Act fthe Act), in campliance with second previso
s section § of Section 135 of the Act.
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Notes i the financial stabements s ot and For the year endod March 31, 2005
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{Rs. in ik anless otherwise stated)

2%. Tax expense
The maor of ) for the: end March 31, 2025 and March 31, 3024 are.
A, Ameunt recognised I profit and Jass: For the year ended  For the year ended
Ma; M
Current Income Tux:
Carrent mcome tax charge Bd
Adsusiment i respeet of 1nceme tax of previous vear 4::2. ST':::
Deferred tax:
Cuarent vear
Adjustivent of ta relaied o earlier periods Ir:f::g] ]; ;w;
Change i defermed tx due to changs m rate* 3 282 50
Income tax expense reported in the statement af profit ar loss 500,58 IT4.48
Deferred tax impact P nther comp Income (OLT)
R of defined benedil obfiga 254 1745
Total income tax henefit in ather hensive hncome pEr] [EFL
B. Recomciliation of tux expense und the accommting profit multiplied by Tndia's domestic tax rate For the year ended  For the year ended
Ma 3,
Profit for the vear 207289 26T
Inceme tax using the donsestic tax rete (CY 2RI FY 2917 S21.7% ST40
Rale chasge mepact on defemed tay R 282 00
Mo deductible epenses 018 B]
Adiiastment in respect of curment mcome tax of earlier vears 1124 1476
MAT relaed adjstments v 2607
Adpstrent n respect of doforned tax of carlier vears : (1590} 1nag
CGnen on derecognition of finance) habiy = (19.74)
Income tax effect on ftsance cast 6237 7L
S50, 50 574,48
Deferred tax
A Deferra] 1% assets ang ibilies ase attributable o the followme
Deforred tax pasets Deferred tax liabilities Net deferred tax asset/{linbilities)
As at Asat As at As al As b As mt
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2004 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2034 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Property, piast and equipment and other méangible assets 18531 334 87 - - 19533 33457
Raght o use nssets - - {8320 (KR ] (53.20) am
Lemse lanbylsty 401 390 s = s409] EE ]
Dnffiereiice m tax base and book value of COCPS . i - - - =
Provisson for ESOPs 1263 2503 26 2503
Frovisions fr emploves henafits X987 19627 - - 20987 15627
Prowvsions for loss allowances #479 BO7 - - MM 602
Onher jbems 1333 aL1s - - 1333 2118
Net deferred tax asseta/(lisbilities) 340,55 586.94 (5320 3.92) T [TETT
M tem rences
Balance a5 at i h.:" pvet mt,l" mriscd In g e aaq  RECORRISC ::‘"‘:““‘: hwi-;‘l_;u I'"“:::!: Hulance as at
Marsh 31, 2023 2023-34 A2 202324 March 31, 2024 203435 202425
Property, plant asl and other il 61840 (283 83} - - 33457 139.24) - - 19523
Raght of Usc assats - (392) - E (9 (49,28) - - (53.20)
Lease hability - 390 - 390 100 - - 54.9)
Provision for ESOPs 534 12351) - 470 5m - - {240y 2263
Provisions for cployee benefits 28362 (65 86} 1749) - 196.27 16,14 (2.54) - 20987
Provisions for boss aliowences. 59 {215 - . 602 nn - - 4T
Tmipact of tifference in tax basc and bock value of Compalsonly (076} 0% = 5 3 : - i i
Conventible Preference Shares
Ohther fems 2528 (LRIt - - 2115 {T82) - - 13313
MAT crodl entitlements 2607 —_607) - : - - = = 2
BTN (43420 a7.9) {470 FET o) Z5) Gl e
defe
Disclosed in the halance shoet as fallaws: Asat Asat
Deefemed tax assets S41 RS 58302
Defiered tav Habubitis S3.20 e L
Deferred tax avsts (ne) — et s
haclosed 1 the stastetent of profit and loss s Sollows Asat As ot
March 31 Mar
Tax mcome expense) dunag the vear (L) 434,20
Income tax mipact of OC| {2.34) {17.49)
Deferred tax expeme {nef) —21.26) el AELET)

* In pursuasce of Sectiom 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 notiBed by Govemment of Frdsa through Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act 2015, the Company has opted for lower income e ravte during the previous vear:

38, Earning per share (EPS)

IincEPSmﬂs-::ﬂc-hwdb_vdmdn;n:lmﬁub-jralnyurmhuh&mmtyhuhmﬁduchbvlkw of equity shares dimng the vear

Enlated EPS smousts are calcalated by dividing the profit loss 1o exquity hold i nlrulmnp-clmpmth-fdnhuupnuaudqﬂydm}bﬂwwnfwﬂledmunnhnfmm
Ihlbﬂuwugrdhaxﬂmuumwdmuhlmu!nmemwamﬂ’smm

Profitf1nss | attributable 1o equity holders of the Compamy 1,482.39 130619
Profit sttrbutable 1o equity holders for basic eamings 1482 3% 1,386.19
Wesghted avermpe nuniber of equity shares outslanding af the hegmnmg of the vear 44085 874 44,089 K78
Proportion of shares against which calls i arrears recesved during the vear 252263 -
Weighted avernge number of equity shares sutstanding at the end of the year for basic EPS 44,342,141 44,063,878
Effect of dibution (Share options) 14789408 2471581
Weighted sverage mumber of equity shares outstanding af the end of the vear for dilutive EPS 45,521,090 6,561,459
Basic earmings per share of Rs. 18 cach { in Ra.) a4 296
Dilated earnings per share of Rs. 10 each { in Ry} 3 281

O Jenuary |5, 2024, cutstanding 3,30,00,000 Cumalative Conspulsory Convertible Prefererics Shares have been convertad mio 3,30,00,000 Non-Convertible Redesmable Preforonce Shares, Accordingly, for calcalstion of
Inbited earnsigs per shars, didd ot the smpact of shares
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
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31

Employee benefit obligations

A. Defined Contribution Plan
During the year, the com pany has r

gnised the following amounts in statement of Profit & Loss:

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
Employer's contribution to provident and other fund 510.86 517.28
510,86 51728
b, Defined Benefit Plans
The Company have a defined benefit gratuity plan The gratuity plan 1s governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Every who has completed five years or more of

service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service or part thereof in meés of six months. The le

depends on the member's length of service and salary at the time of departure.

The following tables summarises the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and

(i) Liability for defined benefit abligation as at Balance sheet date;

d in the bal

vel of benefits provided

sheet for the plans:

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31,
2024
Present value of obligation of Gratuty plan 52582 468 88
Fair value of Plan assets . »
Net liability recognised in balance sheet 525,82 468.88
(i} Com ponents of defined benefit cost recognised in the statement of profit and loss under Employee benefit Exy
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current service cost 129.64 98,43
Interest cost on benefit obligation 33.85 36.03
Contribution paid from the Fund & i
Expected return on plan assets - -
Net benefit expense 163,49 134,46
(iii). Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening defined benefit obligation 468 88 489 47
Acquisition adjustment 16.58 -
Interest cost 3385 36.03
Current service cost 129.64 98,43
Benefits paid (113.05) (85.58)
Re-measurements (gain)loss (10.08) (69.47)
Closing defined benefit obligation 525.82 468.88
The Company has no plan asset against above liability for defined benefit obligation,
iv). The principal assum ptions used in determinin ny's plans are shown below:
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate 6.99% 1.22%
Future salary increases 8.00% 8.00%
Retirement Age (Years) 58 Years 58 Years
Mortality rates mclusive of provision for disability 100% of IALM
Ages Withdrawal Rate %
Up to 30 years 15% 15%
From 31 to 44 years 15% 15%
Above 44 years 15% 15%
10074 of IALM

Mortality rate

2012-14
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3

Em ployee henefit obligations (continued)
v¥) A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31 2025 is as shown below:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025
Discount Rate Future Salary Increase
Sensitivity level (5% Increase 0.5% Decrease 0.5% Increase 0.5% Decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation - gam/(loss) (15.29) 16.15 1592 (15.22)
i) A guantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assum ption as at March 31, 2024 is as shown below:
,.., = For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
Discount Rate Future Salary Increase
Sensitivity Jevel 0 5% Increase 0.5% Decrease 0.5% Increase 0.5% Decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation - gain/(loss) (14.01) 1475 14 58 (13.97)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period

Avii) The following payments are expected to be made under defined benefit plan in future years;

Gratuity
AsatMarch 31,2025 AS%¢ M"";;l'
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period ) 5005 100,51
Between 2-5 Years 21026 159,07
Between 5-6 years 37.28 2879
Beyond 6 years 228.22 180.51
Total expected payments 525,82 468.88

The average remaining working life of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the year is 24,97 years (March 31, 2024; 25.74 years).
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32 Share-Based Payments

Tn May 2018, m order to motvale the empiovees of the Fintech Business Undertaking ( “designed omph "), the and R granted Options ("ongmally issued
options”) 1o the designated employees pursuant 1o the Compary s stock option plen namely, “SMI. Emplovee Stock Optwn Plan 2015° *E80P 20159 'I‘he()ptmmgmnd will vest over a period
of 3 years, 4 years as well as over & penod of 5 years from the date of grant in the manner given below

Time Period (3 years) % of Options granted Time Period % of Options granted Time Period % of Options

(4 years) {5 years) granted
et = 1” Vestmg 25 1" Vesy 10
i 2 " Vesting 25 2™ Vesting 5
3" Vestng 30 3" Vesting 25 3™ Vesyng 20
4" Vesting 25 4 Vesting 25
5 vy ET)

“The maximum penod for exercise of options 15 3 vears or 5 years from end of cach vesting date. Each option, when d, would be d it one fully pad-up equty share of 10 each of the

Company The optioms granted under ESOP 2015 carvy no nghts 1o dividends and no voting nghts til] the date of exercise
The faar value of the share options 15 estimated st the grant dato using Rleck and Scholes Model, taking into aceount the terms and condtions upon which the share options were granted.

Druring the vear, certam unvesied options were cancelied on non-fulfilment of certun vesting conditions under ESOP 2015 As at the end of the financisl vear, details and movements of the oulstanding
optins are ax fflows

Partieulars As at March 31, 202§ An at March 31, 2024
No. af Options Weighted Average No. of Options ‘Weighted Average
L] exereise price (%)
5 . 2 550,260 3410 5,402,900 3410
i A, e Scipntny of e yoar 30,000 8237 35,000 [F¥E
Options granted under ESOP 2015 - ~ - =
Ophions exercised during the year = = %
{122,200 34.10 (1.962.640) 4, IO
Uphons cancelled
b g fho yewt (30,000 5227 113,000, 5227
Options expired dunng the vear L = = =
| Change m vestng perod* 3 = {450,000)] 0
208 0 3410 2,990,260 0
Oiptrons outstanding a1 the end of the vear . E%l 30,000 T
2 RGR 00) W0 78 D6 410
creisabic al the end of the
Cplions o L vear 12,000
4 Year Vesting Plan
[Particulars As at March 31, 202§ A at March 31, 2024
Weighted Average Weighted Average
N, af Dptia
S Dpten exereise price (T) Mg o i
Opteons owtstandme at the beginming of the vear 525,000 87277 . .
500,000 3410 535,000 8237
Options granted under ESOP 2015 40,000 | 4400 - H
150,000 4659 - -
Cptions exercized durmg the year ' = . =
Options during the vear 5000 B237 = A
£500.000 8227
Chenge m exervise price 450,000 46.59
50.000 44.00
- 2.27 525,000 8227
5 500,000 410
Ciptions outstanding at the end of the vear 0,000 00
50,000 X
. 112,500 59
Oiptions exercisable al the end of the year 12.500 00 = 5
§ Year Vesting Plan
Particulars As ot March 31, 2028 As at March 31, 2024
Weighted Average Weighted Average
Na. of Options ek No. of Optisne e
- : SO0 | 34 10 1642880 0
COptions 12 at the hegmnme of the vear 35,900 S ez 400 — w22 |
Ciptions granted under ESOP 2015 = : - .
Cipleons exgrey the s . b -
: (38,200 3.0 {1,326,920/ 34.10
Ciptions cancelled during the vear - . T67.400 (%]
Oiptrons expured dunng the vear - - a -
5,000 827
Change in eXercise prica I\Jjﬁ]]} A
Change n * - 2 450,000 3410
TO7, 760 34.10 765,960 4.1
Ciptwons cutstandimg at the end of the vear® 55,000 00 55,000 T
” : 78,990 3410 31,59 41
Optaoms exercesable a1 the end of the year FERE] Hm 9,500 T
*During the FY 23.24, vestng persod of’ 4,50,000 options issued to Mr. Remesh Venkataraman has been amended from 3 years to 5 years. A fingly mumber of options fing st the end of the

vear have been changed shown under 3 years vesting plan and 5 years vesting plan respectively
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32 Share-Baved Payments (continued)

The fmr value of each

on 15 estimated on the date of grant based on the following assumptions
Fair Value Fair Value Per Option (Rs.)
Grant Year Grant Month Dividend yield Expected life | Risk Free Interent Rate | Volatality '::.‘_"_,“""'
pricing (T) |Iyears |4ysar |5 ywar
2.5 vru for | st vesting  B2% for 15l Vesting
201819 Apnl 2018 Nil 3.5 v for 2nd vesting | 7 048 for 2nd vesting 24 00 M| 981
4.5 yrs for 3rd vesting 7 21% for 3rd Vesting = =
2020-21 Aug 2020 Nil 25 yrs for |8t vesting | 5 28% for st Vesting
3.5 yrs for Ind vesting | 566% for 2nd vesting 3135% 3380 | 1026
202122 Aug 2020 il 4.5 yrs for Ird vesting 5.94% for 3rd Vesting
Aug 2020 Nil - e
2.5 yrs for | st vesting 6.50% for 15t Vesting
3.5 yrs for Ind vesting | 6.79% for 2nd vesting
May 20122 Wil 4.5 yes for 3rd vesting | 6 .99% for 3rd Vesting 35 80% 3452 . 1485
5.5 yrs for #th vesting | 7 12% for 4th Vesting
N22-23 G5 vrsfor Sthvesting | 7 23% for Sth Vesting
2.5 yrx for |5t vesting 6.67% for 1st Veshing
3.5 yr= for 2nd vesting 6 94% for 2nd vesting
June 2022 il 4.5yrs for Ird vesting | 7 11% for 3rd Vesting 35 44% B 1:ma . 155
5.5 yrs for dth vesting 7 22% for 4th Vesting
6.5 yrs for Sth vesting | 7 20% for 5th Viesting
2.5 yrs for 18 vesting 7 10% for 1st Vesting
" 35 yre for Ind vesting | 7.12% for 2nd vesting 119 9353 . 1
2023-24 Janary 2024 Nil 4.5 yrs for Jrdd vesting | 7 14% for 3rd Vesting 391% k 396
5.5 yrs for dth vesting | 7 14% for 4th Vesting
Augst 2024 il 25 yms for Istvestng | 7 10% for 18t Vestng - s .
c 3 3.5 yrs for 2nd vesting | 7 2% for 2nd vesting 3391% 5177 %
202425 February 2025 il 4.5 vrs for 3rd vesting 7 14% for 3rd Vesting 33 L 2164
March 2025 Nil S5yrsfor 4th vesting | 7 14% for dth Vesting ‘ a1 a4 5
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33. Commitments and contingencies

(2) Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on eapital account and not provided for:

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Estimated value of contracts (net of advances)
remaining to be executed on capital account 33.50
and not provided for.

(b) Contingent liabilities

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Income Tax

In respect of assessment year 2018-19, the Assessing Officer has made disallowance
of Rs 69.01 lakhs to the assessed income in the order of assessment passed u/s 143(3)
of Income Tax Act, 1961 and tax thereon adjusted against the Income Tax Refund
claimed in ITR and refunded the balance amount of Rs 7.10 lakhs. The Company has
filed an appeal before the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) on April 07, 2021.

Goods and Services Tax

I. In respect of tax period Nov 2018 to March 2019, the State tax officer of]
Dehradun, Uttarakhand has made demand of Rs. 95.76 lakhs related to short
declaration of taxable turnover and consequent short payment of GST. The litigation
is pending with Uttarakhand High Court,

2. Demand related to declaration of short tunrover and corresponding short payment
of GST liability for the year FY 2019-20

14.89

95.76

45.75

14,89

95.76
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CIN: UT2900DL2000PLC104989

(Rs. in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

34 Related party transactions

In d. with the req of Ind AS - 24 'Related Party Dhsclosures', names of the related parties, related party relationship, t and outstanding bal lud

commitments where control exists and with whom transactions have taken place during reported periods are -

Entity with significant influence;

Ultimate Holding Company Rajarshi Modi Private Limited (Formerly known as “Smart Global Corporate Holding
Private Limited")

Intermediate Holding Com pany Spice Connect Private Limited

Holding Company DiGiSPICE Technologies Limited

Key management personnel (KMP) of Holding Company Mr. Rohit Ahwja (Executive Director- Holding Company)

Subsidiary Company Kimaan Exports Private Limited

Fellow subsidiaries WSFx Global Pay Limited (formerly Wall Street Finance Ltd)

E-Arth Travel Solutions Private Limited
Vikasni Fintech Private Limited
Spicebulls Investments Limited

Key management personnel (KMP) Mr. Dilip Kumar Modi (Chief Executive Officer we f 01 04.2024)
Mr. Ramesh Venkataraman (Chairman- Non-Executive Director)
Mr Sunil Kumar Kapoor (Whole-time Director & Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Mrutyunjay Mahapatra (Independent D )
Dr Rashmi Aggarwal (Independent Director till 03.02.2025)
Ms. Veena Mankar (Independent Director)
Mr. Venkatramu Jayanthi (Whole-time Director & Chief Business Officer from
01.04.2024 to 28.02,2025)
Mr. Srikrishna Narasimhan (Non-Executive Director w.e 12.02.2025)
Mr. Pankaj Vaish (Independent Director we f 15.03 2025)
Mr. Samjeev Nand Kumar (Chief Executive Officer till 30 03 2024)
Ms. Megha Bansal (Company Secretary till 02.10.2023)
Ms. Chaitali Desai (Company Secretary w.e.f. 03,10.2023)

Other entities where KMP are able to exercise significant influence Ek soch Foundation
Following transactions were entered in normal course of business, with related parties:

Particulars Relationship For the period ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Rent paid
Digispice Technologies Limited Holding Company 212 212
Kimaan Exports Private Limited Subsidiary 172.51 230.01
WSFx Global Pay Limited (formerly Wall Street Finance Ltd) Fellow Subsidiary 11,65 -
Services received
Dhgispice Technologies Limited Holding Company - 11246
H keeping and Mai Charges Paid
Kimaan Exports Private Limited Subsidiary 54.00 -
Revenue from Operations
Spicebulls Investments Limited Fellow Subsidiary 96,47 -
Remuneration paid (Short-term employee benefits - including reimbursements)
Mr. Sanjeev Nand Kumar KMP - 447.57
Mr Dilip Modi KMP 300 00 P
Mr Suml Kumar Kapoor KMP 12300 109.71
Ms Megha Bansal KMP - 561
Ms Chaitali Desar KMP 26.65 984
Mr. Venkatramu Jayanthi KMP 107.95 -
Severance Pay
Mr Sanjeev Nand Kumar KMP - 24063
Director sitting fee
Mr. Mrutyunjay Mahapatra Independent Director 16.50 13.25
Dr Rashmi Aggarwal Independent Director 10.50 10.00
Ms Veena Mankar Independent Director 10.00 775
Mr Pankay Vaish Independent Director 1.00 -
Consultancy payment (Legal and professional fees)
Mr Ramesh Venkatraman Non-Executive Director 38.25 36.00
Reimbursement of expenses paid to related parties .
Digispice Technologies Limited Holding Company 2741 44.83
Mr Ramesh Venkatraman Non-Executive Director 27 132
Other expenses -
Kimaan Exports Private Limited Subsidiary B.85 1197
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34 Related party transactions
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment

Dhgispice Technologes Limited Holding Company 25.11 -
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34 Related party transactions

Following transactions were entered in normal course of business, with related parties: (continued)

Expenses on behalf of related parties

Digispice Technologies Limited Holding Company 1268 45.23
Spice Connect Private Limited Holding Company 2914 2939
Mr. Dilip Modi Founder and CEO 118.56 156.82
Mr Ramesh Venkatraman Non-Executive Director - 0.98
Mr Rohit Ahuja KMP of Holding Company 2431 1732
E-arth Travel Solution Pvt Ltd Fellow subsidiary 1.64 "
Vikasm Fintech Private Limited Fellow subsidiary 1.10 -
WSFx Global Pay Limited (formerly Wall Street Finance Ltd ) Fellow subsidiary 1.47 3.42
Dividend paid

Digispice Technologies Limited Holding Company 160.21 165.00
CSR expenses

Ek Soch Foundation 21.00 40.00
The following were the balances receivable from/payable to the related parties as at year end:

Payables

Digispice Technologies Limited Holding Company 17.61 35.61
WS5Fx Global Pay Limited (formerly Wall Street Finance Lud ) Fellow subsidiary 6.25 -
Receivables

E-Arth Travel Solutions Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary 0.00 407
Vikasm Fintech Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary 2.96 1 86
Kimaan Exports Private Limited Subsidiary 100 42 60,43
Spicebulls Investments Limited Fellow Subsidiary 96,47 -
Salary and sitting fees payables to KMP

Mr Dilip Kumar Mod) Founder and CEQ 14,57 042
Mr Sanjeev Nand Kumar KMP - 23921
Mr Sumil Kumar Kapoor KMP 14 08 437
Ms. Chatali Desar KMP 1.61 056
Mr Venkatramu Jayanthi KMP 647 -
Mr Mrutyunjay Mahapatra Independent Director 045 -
Payabies to Non-Executive Director

Mr Ramesh Venkatraman Non-Executive Director 9.69 478
Other receivables

Spice Connect Private Limited Intermediate holding comy 2.66 827
WSFx Global Pay Limited (formerly Wall Street Finance Ltd ) Fellow subsidiary 147 =
Mr Dilip Kumar Mods Founder and CEQ 19.57 -
Mr_Rohit Ahua KMP ofHoIdiEE ComEan! 10.23 426
Redemption of NCRPS

 Digispice Technologies Limited _Holding Company __ 500.00 500.00
Note:

(i) Summarized details of remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel are as under:

[Pnrtiunlnr: FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24
Short term benefits 595.60 603 73
Share based payments** - -
The above ion to the key genal p I does not include the provision made for gratuity and leave benefits, as they are determined on an actuarial basis for the

Company as a whole and charge taken towards share based payments expense

** Duning the year, the Company has granted 4,00,000 options to KMP, value of which shall be disclosed af the time of exercise of options. Out of stock options granted to director and
KMPs, total outstanding as on March 31, 2025 are 14,97 360 (as on March 31, 2024 - 10,97,360).

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured, interest free and settlement occurs in cash

35 Segment information

The Company 15 d in the infi hnology business rendering financial technology and ticket booking services, The board of directors of the Company which have been
identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), evaluate the Company's performance. Based on identical services the Company deals in, which have similar risks and
rewards, the entire b has been lered as a single in terms of Ind AS-108 on segment reporting.

Accardingly, the disclosure requirements of Ind AS 108 are not applicable.
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36. Fair values

Carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, includin
does not include the fair value information for financial assets and financial liabiliti

value.

g their levels in the fair value hierarchy, are presented below. It
es whose carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair

Particulars As at March 31, 2025
Carrying amount Fair Value

Financial assets FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost
-Loan (Non-Current) - - -
-Other financial assets (Non-Current) 1,095.69 - 1,095.69
-Trade receivables 2,741.39 - 2,741.39
-Cash and cash equivalent 18.985.83 - 18,985.83
-Bank balances other than above 16,381.23 - 16,381.23
-Loans (Current) 168.16 - 168.16
-Other financial assets (Current) 10,271.21 ™ 10,271.21
Total ﬁ_n_gncia] assets 49,643.51 Y 49,643.51
Financial liabilities

-Lease liabilities (Non-current) 166.53 166.53
-Borrowing (Current) 10,098.01 - 10,098.01
-Trade payables 1.505.12 - 1,505.12
-Lease liabilities (Current) 51.65 - 51.65
-Other financial liabilities (Current) 2.247.34 - 2,247.34
Total financial liabilities 14,068.65 = 14,068.65

Partcailars As at March 31, 2024
Carrving amount Fair Value

Financial assets FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost
“Loans (Non-c urrent) - - T -
-Other financial assets (Non-Current) 3.546.07 - 3,546.07
-Trade receivables 2,163.76 - 2,163.76
-Cash and cash equivalent 11,641.39 - 11,641.39
-Bank balances other than above 21,007.38 - 21,007.38
-Loans (Current) 148.16 - 148.16
-Other financial assets (Current) 1,295 51 - 1,295.51
Total financial assets 39,802.27 - 39,802.27
Financial liabilities

-Lease liabilities (Non-current) 9.63 - 9.63
-Borrowing (Non-current) 585.39 B 585.39
-Borrowing {Current) 4,830,55 - 4,830.55
-Trade payables 1.346.77 - 1,346.77
-Lease liabilities (Current) 5.85 - 5.85
-Other financial liabilities (Current) 1.818.00 - 1,818.00
Total financial liabilities 8,596.19 - 8,596.19

Investments in note 6 represents investments in equity shares of subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries which are
to be disclosed as per Ind AS 107 “Financial Instruments Disclosures™. Hence, the same have been excluded from the above table.

carried at cost and hence are not required
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37.Fair value hierarchy

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level | - Quoted (unadjusted ) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy, are presented below., It does not include
the fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrament could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

- Borrowings are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates and specific country risk factors.

- The fair value of other financial liabilities, is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities.

- The fair values of the Company's interest-bearing borrowings and loans are determined by using DCF method using discount rate that reflects the issuer’s borrowing rate
as at the end of the reporting period. No own non- performance risk as at March 31, 2025 was assessed.

Financial Instruments by Category

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Financial assets Level 3 Total Level 3 Total
-Loans (Non-Current) % = 4 .
-Other financial assets (Non-Current) 1,095,69 1,095.69 3,546.07 3.546.07
-Trade receivables 2,741.39 2,741.39 2,163.76 2,163.76
-Cash and cash equivalent 18,985 83 18,985.83 11,641.39 11,641.39
-Bank balances other than above 16,381.23 16,381.23 21,007.38 2100738
-Loans (Current) 168.16 168.16 148.16 148.16
-Other financial assets (Current) 10,271.21 10,271.21 1,295.51 1,295 51
Total financial assets 49,643.51 49,643.51 39,802.27 39,802.27 |
| Financial liabilities
-Borrowing (Non-current) - - 585.39 585.39
-Lease liabilities (Non-current) 166.53 166.53 9.63 9.63
-Borrowing (Current) 10,098.01 10,098,01 4,830.55 4,830.55
-Trade payables 1,505.12 1,505.12 1,346.77 1,346.77
-Lease liabilities (Current) 51.65 51,65 5.85 5.85
-Other financial liabilities (Current) 2,247.34 2,247.34 1,818.00 1,818.00
Total financial liabilities 14,068.65 14,068.65 8,596.19 §,596.19

* Fair Values of Financial Assets and Liabilities that are measured at amortised cost, are considered under Level 3 fair value hierarchy.

There have been no transfers between Level | and Level 2 during the current year and previous year,
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38, Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, prisc borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance and support the operations of the
Company. The Company's principal financial assets include trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances, loans and other financial assets that derive directly from its
operations. The Company i in subsidiary companies measured at cost.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management advises on financial risks and the appropriatc financial risk govemnance
framework, The senior management provides assurance that the Company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are

identified, 1 and managed in lance with the Company's policies and risk objectives,
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will f] b of changes in market prices. Market risk compriscs three types of risk;

currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits.
Company is not affected by commodity risk and currency risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate b of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk
of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s short-term debt obligations with floating interest rates and loan advanced by Company to fellow subsidiaries and a
body corporate,

The Senior Manag of the Company ges its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate borrowings.

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table d the sensitivity to a rcasonably possible change in nterest rates on that portion of borrowings affected, with all other variables held constant, the
Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, present rate is FDR interest rate plus 1% ( March 31, 2025: FDR interest rate plus 1%), the impact
of change in rate is as follows:

In the current year, interest rate sensitivity is calculated on borrowing and interest bearing deposits from customers while in the previous year it was calculated on borrowing. The impact
of change in interest rate is given below:-

Increase/(Decrease) in
Incresse/decrease profit before tax and
in basis points equity before tax
31 March 2025 50 (38.36)
38.36
31 March 2024 50 (12.88)
12.88

Equity price risk ) - i ) .
The Company's investment in unlisted equity securities are mainly in subsidi y panies which is ptible to imy test as applicable. The Company does not engage in active
trading of equity instruments, The Board of Directors of Company reviews and approves all equity investment decisions.

Other riskfinherent risk
The Company operates in financial services sector and manages very high volume of transactions, which have the inherent risk of funds management in comparison to other services
sector.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial i or cust contract, leading to a financial loss, The Company is eltposeld to credit risk
from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financi g activities, including Loans, deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial instruments.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company’s established credit policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed
based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment and also based upon ag; fterms with respective 5
Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor receivables arc grouped into homogenous groups
and assessed for impairment collectively. The Company does not hold collateral as security, The Company eval the ion of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as
its customers are located in several jurisdictions and industries and op in largely independent markets.

The Company has used 4 practical expedient and analysed the recoverable amount of the receivables on an individual basis, The C pany provide for expected loss
financial assets based on historical credit loss experi and adj for forward looking information’s.

for
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38.Fi ial risk 2 bjectives and policies (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The following table provides information about exposure to credit risk and expected credit loss for trade receivables for customers:
As on March 31, 2025

Rs. In lakhs Gross Carrying Weighted-Average Loss Credit-
Amount Loss Rate Allowance Impaired
Not Due 618.11 0% - No
1- 90 days 42220 0% 5 No
91-180 days 102.16 % 1.81 No
181-270 days 97.03 9% 9,07 No
271-365 days 33.06 5% 11.64 No
More than 365 days _ 8.50 48% 4.10 No
1,281.06 26,62
As an March 31, 2024
Rs. In lakhs Gross Carrying  Weighted-Average Loss Credit-
= Amount Loss Rate Allowance Impaired
Not Due 175.11 0% = No
1- 90 days 311788 0% - No
91-180 days 36.84 0% - No
181-270 days 1.62 0% - No
271-365 days 120.56 0% - No
More than 365 days 297 100% 2.97 No
654,98 2.97

Maovement in the expected credit loss allowance of receivables

For the vear ended March 31, 2025 For the year ended March 31, 2024
297 96.09

Balance at beginning of the year

Add: Provided during the year 26.62 2.97
Less: Reversals of provision - (11.97)
Less: Amounts w_1_;|'-tten off (2.97) (84.11)
Balance at the end of the year 16,62 297

Liquidity risk

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance hetween continuity of funding and flexibility through usc of working capital facility. The Company assessed the concentration of risk
with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has access to a sufficient variety of of funding and debt ing within 12 ths can be rolled
over with existing lenders,

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted

Swi2

Carrying value On demand months months 11to5 years Total
As at March 31, 2025
Debt portion of non convertible redeemable
preference shares (refer note 48) 2,426.85 < 1,000.00 1,300.00 - 2,300.00
Dividend on preference shares - - 131.92 - 131.92
Borrowings 167116 167116 . - - 7,671.16
Trade payables 1,505.12 - 1,505.12 - - 1,505.12
Lease liabilities {current and non-current) 218.18 - 16.70 51.00 179.51 247121
Other financial liabilities 2,247.34 - 2.247.34 - - 2,247.34
14,068.65 7.671.16 4,769.16 1,482.92 179.51 14,102.76
As at March 31, 2024
Debt Portion of Compulsorily Convertible
Preference Shares (refer note 48) 2,839.65 - 700.00 1,500.00 600.00 2.800.00
Dividend on preference shares - - 128.29 - 128.29
Borrowings 2,576.29 2.576.29 - . ) 2,576.29
Trade payables 1,346.77 - 1,346.77 - - 1,346.77
Lease abilitics (current and non=current) 15.48 - 1.55 4.65 11.37 17.58
Other financial liabilities 1,818.00 — 1.818.00 - - 1,818.00
8,596.19 2,576,29 3,866.32 1,632.94 61137 8,686.93
Excessive risk concentration

Coneentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have economic features that would cause
their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's
performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

cEad nartfnk

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company's policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on the mai of a dr ied p Identified
concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly,

Collateral
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deposits of Rs. 2541 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs, 75.00 lakhs) lien marked against issue of corporate credit card, deposits of Rs. 30.55 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs, Nil lakhs) lien marked
against FLDG arrangement with UGRO Capital. Banks have obligations to return the d posits to the Company upon sett] of the obligations under the contracts, There are no other
significant terms and conditions associated with the use of collateral
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39, Capital management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital capital includes 1ssued equity capital, securities premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent
The pnmary objective of the Company s capital 12 15 0 the shareholder value

The Company its capital and makes ad m hight of ch n di and the requi of the f ial ants. To or adjust the capital

structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or 1ssue new shares, The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which s net

debt divided by total capital plus net debt The Company's policy 15 to keep the geanng ratio less than 75% The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings less
cash and cash equivalents

As at March 31,2025  As at March 31, 2024

Rs. Rs.

Borrowings (other than convertible preference shares) 767116 257620

Debt portion of non convertible redeemahle preference shares (refer note 48) 2,426 85 283965

Lease habilities (refer note 5) 21818 1548

Less. cash and cash equivalents (18,985 §3) (11,641 39)

Net Debt (A) {8,669.64) (6,209.98)

Equity share capital 4,487.20 4,408.99

Other equity 8,271 88 6.276.23

Total equity (B) 12,759.08 10,685.22

Total Equity and Net Debt {A+B) 4,089.44 4,475.24

Gearing ratio Nil Nil

In order to achieve this overall abjective, the Company ‘s capital ag other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the intgrest-bearing loans and
borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the fi | covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no

breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current year.

40, The Company has investments in subsidiary and fellow subsidiaries but no lidated financial st prepared as the Company has obtained requisite no objection from its
shareholders. The Holding Company prepares the consolidated financial statements which are filed with Registrar of Companies in India.
The consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company includes subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries listed in the table below
e o Proportion of ownershi Method of acc ing Type of

adianal il Koot March 31, 3026 Asal Mgil: 313004 of investment vt
Kimaan Exparts Private Limited India 100 00% 100.00% Cost Subsidiary
Vikasni Fintech Private Limited India 49.00% 49.00% Cost Fellow subsidiary
E-arth Travel Solutions Private Limited India 3133% 33.33% Cost Fellow subsidiary

41. Disclosures required under Section 186(4) of the Companies Act 2013

Details of Investments made (Al cost):
As at March 31, 2028

Investments made  Investment sold during

Particulars Opening investments Closing investments

during the year the year
Kimaan Exports Private Linuted 6,276.00 - - 6,276,00
Vikasmi Fintech Private Limited 049 - - 049
E-arth Travel Sol Private Limited 0.50 - - 0.50
As at March 31, 2024
In ts made In sold during =
Particulars Opening investments darlias theyeas (- Closing investments

Kimaan Exports Private Limited 6,276.00 - - 6,276.00
Vikasm Fintech Private Limited 049 - - 0.49

E-arth Travel Solutions Private Limited 0.50 - - 0.50
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42 Details of dues to micro enterprises or small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 as identified
by the management;

Particulars As at March 31, | Asat March 3,
o . . 2025 2024
- The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small suppliers as at the end of)|
the vear
- Principal 15.10 20.21
- Interest Nil Nil
- The amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006
along with the amounts of the pavment made to the supplier beyond Nil Nil

the appointed dav during each accounting year
- The amount of interest due and payable for the period (where the

principal has been paid but interest under the MSMED Act, 2006 not Nil Nil

paid)

- The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of . :

accounting year; and il Nil

- The amount of further inferest due and payable even in the succeeding

vear, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid Nil Nil
i i

to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23

43, Leases
Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value asscts, The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing
the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets ]

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities, The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilitics
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is caloulated using the estimated useful life of the asset,

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

ii) Tease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate, Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lcase liabilities is increased to reflect the aceretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made,
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

43, Leases (continued)
iii)Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Company has incurred Rs 276.73 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: Rs. 282.07 lakhs)

towards short-term leases and lcases of low-value assets,

The Company has incurred Rs. 56.00 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: Rs. 74.22 lakhs) towards
laptops taken on short-term lease.
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44. Financial Ratins

The major financial ratos of the Company computed as per Fnancial stslement prepared under Ind AS are disclosed below al

he year ended March 31, 2025

with the reasons for varisnce

As at March 31, 2028 As at March 31, 2024
Ratia Numcrater Ix d N Denomi Ratia Numerator | Deneminator | Ratin % ol Reasin for Variance
Va
(Current ratio Current Assets Current Lishilities | $3,741.20 49,104 15 10%| 3967850 3917528 KT 806%]Inorease in current ratic 1 on scoount of higher|
‘nmasinamnmuemwudlu'munn
t lishalitios.
Debt - Equaty Ratio Total Debt (inchuding lease Shurcholder’s 10,316.19 12,759.08 &l 543142 10,685 22 051 50 Increase in Debt - Equity Ratio 1 on sccount of higther]
limbalutics) Equity bank overdraft.
Dl Service Coveraga ratio Earnimg before interost, Interest Expenses, 197582 1048 68 284 323580 95937 337 | -15.87%]Due to decrense in, camings and increase i merest end|
deprociation, taxes and gan on princmal payvment of] prmeipal payments durng the year
derecognition of finencial borrovangs
Eiabilsty
Return on Equity ratio Net Profits after taxes Average 1,482 39 1,218 12.65%| 1,306 19 997517 134 342%)
Sharcholder’s
Equity
Inventory Tumover ratin Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 1.600.55 161 53 991 T45 96 34240 218 | 354 81%|Increased dug to mercrss m purchase of mvenory as
1o Jast
Return on Capatal Emploved Eamings hefore iterest and | Capatal Frpioved 2,569 93 2307526 ITL14%] 2,767 30 16,116.54 1717 -35 14%| Decrease in Return on Capital Emploved 1s on acoount
taxes of lower profit durinz the year, and imcroase m|
Trade Recervable Tursover Ratio Net crodit salbes Aversge Trade 44,483 KR 2452 58 1814 4376467 203705 2148 15 58%Decrease in Trade Receivable Turnover Rato 15 on)
Recervable mtnrhidwimmawnmmm
FE3 o oane saies
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45. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s separate financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

A) Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

B) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future, These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly itive to ch,

in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the
interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation,

C) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their
fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk
and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

D) Intangible asset under development

The Company capitalises intangible asset under development for a project in accordance with the accounting policy. Initial capitalisation of costs is based on
management’s judgment that technological and economic feasibility is confirmed, usually when a product development project has reached a defined milestone
according to an established project management model. In determining the amounts to be capitalised, management makes assumptions regarding the expected
future cash generation of the project, discount rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits.

E) Useful lives of depreciable assets
The management estimates useful lives and estimated residual value of depreciable assets based on technical evaluation. These assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

F) Provision and contingent liability

On an ongoing basis, Company reviews pending cases, claims by third parties and other contingencies. For contingent losses that are considered probable, an
estimated loss is recorded as an accrual in financial statements. Loss contingencies that are considered possible are not provided for but disclosed as Contingent
liabilities in the financial statements, Contingencies the likelihood of which is remote are not disclosed in the financial st . Gain contingencies are not
recognized until the contingency has been resolved and amounts are received or receivable.

G) Investment in equity instruments of subsidiary companies
During the year, the Company assessed the investment in equity instrument of subsidiary companies carried at cost for impairment testing, Detailed analysis has
been carried out on the future projections and the Company is confident that investments do not require any impairment.

H) Allowance for bad and doubtful debts and advances

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their amortised cost as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts,
Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems them not to be collectible, Impairment is made on the expected credit losses, which are the
present value of the cash shortfall over the expected life of the financial assets,

I} Share based payments

The Company measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees using Black Scholes model to determine the fair value of options. Estimating fair
value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions
relating to vesting of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the
share option, velatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based
payment transactions are disclosed in Note 32.

J) Lease liability and Right of Use assets
The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of a lease requires significant judgment.
The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate,
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45, Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (continued)

K) Revenue recognition

The Company's revenue from the sale of digital financial services and other services is recognized and accrued based on the number of successful transactions and
in accordance with the terms of agreements for such services. Due to high volume of transactions, the number of transactions are calculated pursuant to the
reports from the database linked to the front end application for digital financial services and other services.

46. The management have identified SAP and Oracle as accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded, However, audit trail feature is not enabled for direct
database changes to SAP for users with using certain access rights. In case of Oracle, audit trail feature for dircct changes to database was enabled from April 09,
2024. The Company is taking steps to ensure feature of audit trail is enabled at SAP database level and maintain log of such configuration changes, Additionally,
the audit trail of previous year has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention to the extent it was enabled and recorded
in the previous year.

In relation to daily backup of books of accounts maintained in electronic form, the Company has a process of taking daily backup of books of accounts, however
due to system constraints daily back up logs were available only for the part of the year i.e from August 24, 2024 to March 31, 2025. The Company has taken
necessary action to ensure going forward, logs for full financial year are retained and available for verification. Also, discussions are underway with the vendor to
ensure backup of audit trail generated in Oracle is being kept, aligning with the requirements set by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA)

47. Exceptional items
The Company engaged The Boston Consulting Group (India) Private Limited for business advisory services, for which professional fee amounting to Rs. 822.00
lakhs has been accounted for on accrual basis for the year ended March 31, 2024 and shown as exceptional item being non recurring in nature,

48. The Company has Bharat Bill Payment authorization from Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and in respect of the same, the Company needs to maintain a net
worth of Rs 10,000 lakhs as per RBI norms. Accordingly, on March 30, 2021, the Board of directors of the Company considered and approved issue of
3,30,00,000 Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference shares (‘CCCPS') at par having face value of Rs [0 per share aggregating to Rs 3,300 lakhs on right
issue basis to existing shareholders in the proportion of their existing shareholding. The terms & conditions of these shares are as follows:

- Convertible into equity shares within 3 years or at the time of fund raise exercise (from external parties) whichever is earlier,

- Conversion will be at the valuation at the event of conversion.

- These shares will be non-participating in nature,

- The Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares have 5% dividend.

The Board of Directors of DiGispice Technologies Limited (Holding Company) on 31 March 2021 considered and approved the infusion of funds for an amount
not exceeding Rs 3,300 lakhs by way of investment in 5% CCCPS of Rs 10 each offered by the Company,

The allotment of above CCCPS had been done on May 25, 2021 and money received in respect of the same had been adjusted against the loan repayment.

On January 15, 2024, the Company has passed special resolution in extra-ordinary general meeting to change the terms of 3,30,00,000 Cumulative Compulsory
Convertible Preference Shares (‘CCCPS’) issued and allotted as approved by the Shareholders vide resolution dated April 28, 2021and the Board of Directors
resolution dated May 25, 2021, by converting them into 3,30,00,000 Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares (NCRPS') so that the said preference
shares, having following terms and conditions:

- carry preferential rights with respect to payment of dividend and repayment in case of winding up;

- be non-participating in the surplus funds;

- be non-participating in the surplus assets and profits, on winding up which may remain after the entire capital has been repaid:

- carry dividend on a cumulative basis @5% p.a.;

- Redeemable on or before 5 years from the date of shareholders approval for amendment, at the discretion of the Company, subject to availability of distributable
profit and fund with the Company;

- carry voting rights only in respect of certain matters as per the provisions of Section 47(2) of the Companies Act, 2013,

The related impact on accounting had been considered based on management estimates in the financial statements which has resulted into a gain of Rs. 78.41
lakhs on account of derecognition of old financial liability for the FY 2023-24 which has been accounted as other income in the financial statements for the year
ended March 31,2024,

Further, the Company has redeemed 50,00,000 NCRPS amounting to Rs. 500 lakhs (March 31, 2024: 500 lakhs) during the year.
Also, the Company intends to redeem the NCRPS by the end of FY 2025-26.

49. The board of directors, at their meeting held on May 22, 2025, approved a 5% dividend on preference shares, subject to the approval of shareholders at the
upcoming annual general meeting.

50. The Board of Directors, at its meeting held on August 8, 2024, has approved the Scheme of Amalgamation (“Scheme™) by way of merger between the
Digispice Technologies Limited (“Transferee Company™) and Spice Money Limited (“Transferor Company 1), E-Arth Travel Solutions Private Limited
(*Transferor Company 2") and Vikasni Fintech Private Limited (“Transferor Company 37) as per the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and the other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act 2013, as amended, and other rules and regulations framed thereunder, subject to necessary approval from the regulatory
authorities concerned. Subsequent to the scheme becoming effective upon approval of the Scheme by NCLT and any other regulatory authorities, the Company
shall cease to exist, and the business operation of the company shall continue under the Transferee Company. Pending such approvals, the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025, are presented without giving effect to Scheme.
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51, The Company has continued to recognise the income from recharge of airtime coupons on net basis (net of sale of airtime coupons as income and purchase of
airtime coupons as an expense) from previous year, The accounting treatment has been applied in accordance with IND AS 115, However, for the purpose of
GST, turnover is being considered on gross basis.

The reconciliation is shown below:

March 31, 2025
Statement of Profit and Loss Extract (considering airtime Adjustment Marsl 31,2025
recharges) (Reported)
Income
Revenue from operations 100,994.01 (56,102.44) 44,891.58
Expense
Purchase of traded goods 57,605.70 56,102.44 1,503.27

52. Additional regulatory information required by Schedule I11 to be disclosed in the financial statements:

(i)
(ii)
{1ii)
(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)
(viif)
(ix)
(x)
(xi)

(xii)

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property.

The Company does not have any transactions with struck-off companies.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
The Company does not own any immovable property as on March 31, 2025 & March 31, 2024. All the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
company for building and office premises where the company is the lessee,
There have been no acquisitions through business combinations and no change of amount due to revaluation of Property, Plant and equipment and other
intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2025 & March 31, 2024.
Compliance with ber of layers: Clause 87 of Section 2 of the Companies (Restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017 is not applicable to the
Company.
Compliance with Approved Scheme of Arrangements: There are no approved Scheme of Arrangements in terms of section 230 to 237 of the Companies
Act, 2013 as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,
Undisclosed Income: There have been no income or related assets which have not been recorded in the books of accounts, that have been surrendered or
disclosed as income in the tax assessments under Income Tax Act, 1961 during the year or any previous vears.
The Company is not declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institutions or other lender, in accordance with the guidelines issued by the
Reserve Bank of India, during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,
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